Aquatics | Fitness
Activities for Adults
Performing Arts Center
Rex Champ Ball Field
Youth Center

PO Box 207

36155 9'" Street
Nehalem OR 97131

855.444.6273
www.ncrd.org

North County Recreation District - Board Meeting Agenda
Thursday August 28, 2025, 5:30pm
NCRD Fireside Room — 36155 9*" St. Nehalem, OR 97131
The NCRD Board will meet in person. For those that do not prefer to attend in person, the Board
will accept written public comment to justins@ncrdnehalem.org.
The Board Meeting will be available via the zoom link below:
https://usQ2web.zoom.us/j/84723137756?pwd=XKWv4Xmx 7ZUAAFiruNyEdbTGjgl.1

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Declaration of Potential Conflict of Interest
Public Comment — in-person, written-in, or via Zoom
Correspondence - None
Employee Recognition
6.1. Scott Crossman - Fitness Attendant
7. Consent Agenda
7.1. Approval of July Board Meeting Minutes
7.2. Approval of July Executive Director Report
7.3. Approval minutes for Strategic planning session 1 and 2
8. Financial Report
8.1. Audit deficiency plan
8.2. Approval of luly Financial Report
9. Committee Reports
9.1. Pool Project Update — Justin Smith
10. Old Business
10.1. Sportsman implementation update
11. New Business
11.1. Approval of new mission statement
11.2. Approval of district goals from planning sessions
11.3. Foundation Board Members appointment
11.4. Surplus property policy
11.5. Pool Grand Opening discussion
Executive Director Report
12.1. Department Reports and updates
12.2. July 12 Art show update
12.3. District Hiring update
13. Announcements / Calendar
13.1. September Board Meeting - 9/17
13.2. Labor Day 9/1 — District closed
13.3. Mudd Nick Foundation Fundraising Dinner 9/20
14. Board Comment
14.1. General Board Comments
15. Adjournment
Accessibility: This meeting is handicap accessible. Please let us know at 855.444.6273 if you
need any special accommodation to attend this meeting.
NCRD is a Special District established under ORS 266

ow oW

12



North County
Recreation District

Scott Crossman - Employee of the Month for August

Scott has been an outstanding asset in his role as a fitness attendant, consistently going above and
beyond expectations. His positive attitude shines through in everything he does and only enhances his
strong work ethic. Whether it’s keeping the facility clean, assisting patrons with genuine care, orta king on
tasks that seem to require the efforts of several people, Scott approaches each responsibility with
dedication and enthusiasm. His commitment and energy elevate the entire fitness center, creating a

welcoming and supportive environment for both staff and community members alike.

(D

PO Box 207 | 361559t St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



Employee of the Month
August 2025

This certificate is proudly presented to

Scott Crosman

In recognition of your exceptional performance, unwavering dedication, and positive attitude.
Your commitment to excellence, consistent support of your colleagues, and contributions to
the success of NCRD embody the values of our organization.

Thank you for going above and beyond in your role and for making a lasting impact on both our
team and the community we serve.

Awarded this 28th day of August, 2025

Justin Smith, Executive Director Michael Howes, Board Chair .N\




North County
Recreation District

NCRD
Regular Board Meeting
July 17,2025 5:30 pm
Fireside Room and Zoom

Call to order by Chairman, Michael Howes at 5:34 pm.

Attendance:

Board: Michael Howes, Doug Sparks, Frankie Knight lll, Erin Laskey-Wilson, Mary Gallagher
Staff: Justin Smith, Marcus Runkle, Jennie Meyers, Kiley Konruff, Sue Dindia-Gray, James Massa,

Tim Schaeffer, Angie Terry

Potential Conflict of Interest: None

Public Comment: None

Employee of the Month: Jennie Meyers was awarded Employee of the Month (Thank you!!)
Oath of Office Swearing In Ceremony for newly elected Board Members: Sparks and Knight
Consent Agenda:

Minutes of the June 12, 2025 Board Meeting
Executive Reportfor the month of June
Motion by Knight, second by Laskey-Wilson to approve the Consent Agenda.
Motion passed unanimously.
Howes - Yes
Sparks-Yes
Laskey-Wilson - Yes

Gallagher -Yes
(3

PO Box207 | 361559 St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273




North County
Recreation District

Knight - Yes
Election of Board Officers:

Michael Howes — President
Motion by Knight, second by Sparks to elect Howes as President of the Board.
Motion passed unanimously.
Howes - Yes
Sparks-Yes
Laskey-Wilson - Yes
Gallagher -Yes
Knight — Yes
Doug Sparks - Vice President
Motion by Gallagher, second by Knight to elect Sparks as Vice President of Board.
Motion passed unanimously.
Howes -Yes
Sparks -Yes
Laskey- Wilson - Yes
Gallagher -Yes
Knight —Yes
Erin Laskey-Wilson — Secretary/Treasurer
Motion by Knight, second by Sparks to elect Erin Laskey-Wilson as Secretary/Treasurer of
the Board.
Motion passed unanimously.
Howes - Yes
Sparks -Yes
Laskey- Wilson - Yes
Gallagher-Yes
Knight - Yes

Financial Report:

Marcus stated that he will research the comparison of the carry-over from the last fiscal year
to the end ofthe 24/25 fiscal year at request by Doug.

PO Box 207 | 36155 9% St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

Marcus reported that the actual revenue for the 24/25 fiscalyear was 91.14% of the projected
amount. Taxes received were in excess of projected amounts and expenses were lower than expected
resulting in a positive cash flow. Questions received responded cdncerning OPB ad billand the
remuneration for the Grant Writer associated with the New Pool fundraising efforts.

Motion by Sparks, second by Knight to accept the Financial Report as presented.
Motion passed unanimously.
Howes - Yes
Sparks-Yes
Laskey-Wilson -Yes
Gallagher-Yes
Knight - Yes

Committee Reports:

Justin discussed how the funding and expenses forthe New Poolis progressing. Currently there is
atotal of $414,994 uncommitted funds. Amounts still due Partech and Klosh will be held till the project
is complete. Total expenditure thus faris $16,269,000.

The county and state inspections have been completed with two very minorissues to be
addressed. There will be a phased opening. Michael and Justin will work together to get the word out to
the staff and the community.

Mary asked about the B Street issue concerning the requirements from the City. Lori Longfellow,
City Manager, is waiting for a quote for overlay of the asphalt on B Street. NCRD has offered a $10,000
supplement to the expense that the city incurs during the regular street schedule of upkeep to make up
for any damage that might have been done due to the construction of the New Pool.

The Donor Wall has been put on pause for the time being.

Leftover funds will be used for items around the building and grounds that need to be added.

Marcus will do an analysis of funds to determine when to begin the payback of the
Commercial Loan of $1,000,000. It is understood that the TLT annual grant for $230,000 will cover
the debt service of the loan.

Justin presented a calendar for approval to verify the August Board Meeting date to be changed to

the 4% Thursday (August 28 at 5:30 pm). :

PO Box 207 | 36155 9th St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273




North County
Recreation District

OLD BUSINESS:
Sportsman Membership Software:

Justin reported that training sessions are in process and that scanners have been installed at all
entry points throughout the buildings. Itis planned to go live with Sportsman on August 1*. The new
system will be introduced to the membership through email, social media, our website and when
entering for the first time. Fobs will be issued at thattime to use going forward. There willbe a member
website in order to sign up for classes or pay for membership online.

Justin will contact Sportsman to determine the best way to roll out the new system to the
current membership.

Strategic Planning:

A date for the follow up Strategic Planning Session was set for July 29 at 3:00 pm to focus on the
short term goals.

NEW BUSINESS:
District Fee Update:

Justin presented a possible model to update the membership fee schedule. After considerable
discussion it was decided to stick with the current plan and revisit the idea of normalizing the fees across

departments at a later date.

Patron Relations Specialists:

PO Box 207 | 36155 9™ St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

Justin spoke about the training of current staff who will be filling the role of PRS and also that new
hires will be on board soon. The position is a critical part of the patron experience at NCRD. Training will
be an ongoing process to ensure positive feedback from patrons and staff.

Executive Directors Report:

Justin’s report-it attached. Highlights below:
Introduction of new Fitness Director, James Massa.
Update of statistics and activity in the Fitness Center.
Youth Department very busy this summer.
Aquatics is hiring
Update on statistics and activity in the Pool
Life Guard training scheduled for August 1,2,3.
Adult Activity continuing through the summer.
PAC continues to offer great programming.
Riverbend contract renewal has been signed.
The New Pool project is nearly complete.
Wildscapes Art Show will net NCRD 80% of sales.
Meeting with community partners.
New tech equipment being installed.
Internal committees being formed.

Announcements/Calendar:

Proclamation:
Parks and Recreation Month: Proclamation was read by Michael Howes.

August Board Meeting:
August 28, 2025 5:30 pm.

July Art Show to support Friends of NCRD fundraising
Board Meeting Schedule for 25/26 presented.

Board Comments:

=)

PO Box 207 | 361559t St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

Doug acknowledged the work that went into the final determination of the DEQ Permit fine that
was imposed at the low amount of $9,300.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:26 pm.
Respectfully submitted,

Jennie Meyers, Recorder

©

PO Box207 | 36155 9t St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



July 2025 Executive Director Report

Correspondence

None

Employee Recognition

Jennie Meyers — Administrative Assistant

Pool Project

We had the county and state health inspections today and we passed both with 2 small changes needing to be
confirmed. At this point we can begin training in the pool and only need to send a photo of the changes when
complete. We are just waiting for those confirmations to be emailed to me in the next couple of days. There are a
couple of issues still being worked out and that is the Therapy pool heat exchanger, we are missing 5 more cores
for some of the doors, and the water flow in the ramp of the Therapy pool. The final step seems to be getting
building occupancy.

Sportsman

We did an updated virtual training with the managers that needed it, and we are now scheduling 1:1 training to go
over any additional training. We have been installing new technology at the entry points and are testing it all. We
are planning to go live August 1.

Department Reports

Fitness
e Welcome to James, he has been doing a great job of meeting the staff and connecting with patrons and

partners.
e We had a total of 24,542 visits in the fitness department this year! An increase of 5%.
e Legextension/curl machine has been repaired
e Working on a complete inventory list of equipment
e Looking at adding an additional personal trainer
e Planning for additional cameras to be installed in fitness area
e Fitness office setup has changed.

e The total number of youths enrolled for the year was 507

e 1fulldayin May

e Average 15 kids per day with a total of 51 participants

e Summer Care has been going great with 5 more weeks ahead.

e Youth program started field trip in July, more information to come next month. -
q

Sports



Between Youth and sports, we seen an increase of 262 more visits/interactions with virtually the same
registrations as 24/25.

Total of 410 participants for the year!

Soccer ended on June 5 with shirts medals, pizza and ice cream. We had a total of 55 participants.
Tee ball / baseball began June 9. We have 51 particiapnts.

Aquatics

Preparing for new pool programming, including creating a schedule and staffing plan, and training on all
new protocols.

Total of 14,429 visits in Aquatics for the year, 2147 more visits than 2024/25.

Saturday June 14 was the final legacy pool swim.

Open swims began on June 16 and have been well attended.

Swim lessons have been running well with 16 registered participants.

Lessons were extended to 1 hour this session.

A lifeguard class is coming up for our staff and will be help in the new pool. 8/1-8/3

Preparing for training staff in

All school lessons ended 6/5.

Adult Activities

Art group has moved outdoors to accommodate summer camps. They are out painting different locations
depending on weather. The location can be found at the welcome center.

Book club continues to be going strong via zoom.

Performing Arts

Riverbend Players had nine performances of “Sordid Lives” in June, concluding on June 15™. Striking the
set was concluded on June 19*". Near record attendance!

On June 20" we had the Brent Follis Quartet concert featuringvocalist Sarah Clarke. Brent always brings in
top level musicians and each has toured around the world. Light jazz and R/B performed brilliantly to a
smaller but very appreciative audience with a standing ovation at the end.

On June 21%we hosted comedian Bo Johnson, produced by Dorothy Geary. Bo has been featured on Netflix
and Comedy Central. Geary’s comedy series has seen growing audience support, and she is bringing New
York comedian Pedro Gonzalez on October 25™.

On June 23"the Missoula Children’s Theater moved in and began teaching 55 youngsters how to act, sing,
and dance. Somehow they are able to accomplish this in an incredible 5 days, and performed two near
sold-out shows. NCRD partners with the Muddnick Foundation to bring this to the community each year.
Saturday July 12' brings the McMinnville Short Films Festival to the PAC.

We are in the process of finalizing the 2026-27 contract with Riverbend.

AUNCRD productions are made possible because of a group of wonderful volunteers. They sell tickets, usher, and
assist with the sound system and stage lighting. We also have a number of sponsors who provide funding or
lodging for our performers. These include Jim Gestautis with Realty One, Manzanita Beach Getaway, Visit

G



Tillamook Coast, Jack and Cihdy Kenne, Rob and Sharon Borgford, Bonnie from Art Happens, and Erika Navarro
and David Self. Our thanks to all!

Executive Director

The Fitness Director has been hired, his:-name is Jame Massa. He started on 6/16/25.

Paver/tile deadline has passed, and we have sold 400 pavers. Time to make an order, | would like to
suggest we go with tile on the wall in the outside space.

Wildscapes Art show is currently taking place at NCRDin July. The opening receptionon July 12 saw a great
turnout selling 11 paintings! 80% of the proceeds for sold art will be going to Friends of NCRD.

Down to the final few purchases of supplies for the new pool

Tim, Justin, Travis, Kerry, and David Hall completed pool mechanical training.

Met with Adventist Health about their donation recognition, and also about potential corporate passes
option for their employees.

Sent out invitationsto some key project advocates, Sen. Suzanne Weber, Rep. Cyrus Javadi, Dr. Tyler Reed,
Superintendent, Neahkahnie School District, Renae Scalabrin, Board Member, Neahkahnie School

District, and Marc Johnson Nehalem Bay Health District Board President
o MetwithMarc from Nehalem Bay Health Clinic and a tour and spoke about a potential partnership.

o Completed a private tour to Dr. Tyler Reed form Neah-Kah-Nie school district.
o Setup atourfor Rep. Cyrus Javadi later this month -
o Yetto hear back from others.
Meeting with Total Mechanical and Klosh to go over service contract.
| have been meeting with the leadership individually each week for more support.
MossyTech has been working on installing all the new equipment at the desks and will be working on
adding some cameras to our system later in the month.
Working on implementing some internal committees, Marketing, Safety, IDEA and Cheers.
We are adding cardboard recycling to the district

Coming events:

September 5": Quarteto Latinoamericano. Classical Latin Grammy winners

September 6 Brent Follis Quartet featuring Saeeda Wright. Again, world touring musicians on our stage.
Saeeda has performed with Prince and Stevie Wonder!

September 7*: McMinnville Short Film Festival

September 15": Opening night for “The Invisible Man” by Riverbend Plyers

October 18": Comedy Sportz from Portland. Hilarious, audience participation improv!



North County
Recreation District

NCRD
Board Work Session/Strategic Planning . A
July 8, 2025 10:00 am Sessrom ——
Fireside Room and Zoom P

Call to order by Michael Howes at 10:00 am.

Attendance:
Michael Howes, Erin Laskey-Wilson, Frankie Knight Ill, Mary Gallagher, Doug Sparks
Justin Smith, Jennie Meyers, Travis Champ, Tim Schaeffer, Gina Grasseth

Pledge of Allegiance

Revised Mission Statement:
To support health and wellbeing through educational, physical,
social and cultural opportunities for all ages and abilities.

Long Term Goals:

e No deferred maintenance of current buildings. New facilities to expand programs. These
items to be accomplished through an asset management system.

e Vibrant community connections

¢ Stable long-term funding (sustainable and through the foundation)

¢ Focus on talent of employees through performance, salary, competency vs outsource

¢ Customer centric operations and program excellence

e Standard of excellence for district facilities/landscaping

e Summer meal program for kids

e SwimTeam

e Clear measurement capability of success

¢ Rebranding

e Skate Park in Riverside Park property

o Reshape and formalize Pickleball relationship

PO Box 207 | 36155 9™ St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

e Utilize the court forrevenue stream

Short Term Goals:

e OPENTHE POOL

e Repurpose the old pool

e Launch new programing

e Form Advisory Councils to get feedback (create a feedback loop)
e Expand programing hours

e Leverage volunteers and staff

e Considerorganizational efficiencies

e Address talent management of staff

¢ CapitalImprovements listin 1,2,3 year increments
e Costrecovery analysis

e Consistentcommunity engagement

e Focus on Teen Programing

e District growth boundary

e |mplement membership software

e Uniform membership pricing structure

Board assistance in short term goals could include:
e Capital Improvement planning and support
e Community Engagement
e Strategic Fundraising efforts through support on an advisory committee
e Friends of NCRD Foundation Board involvement

The meeting was adjourned at12:09 pm.
Respectfully submitted

Jennie Meyers, Recorder

\%

PO Box 207 | 36155 9th St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

NCRD SeSSion 2

Board Work Session Strategic Planning Goals
July 29, 2025 3:00 pm
Fireside Room and Zoom

Call to order by Michael Howes at 3:01 pm.

Attendance:

Board: Michael Howes, Mary Gallagher, Doug Sparks, Erin Laskey-Wilson. Frankie Knight lllwas
excused. A quorum existed.

Staff: Justin Smith, Jennie Meyers

Pledge of Allegiance

The Long Term Goals were acknowledged as decided at the last work session. Therewas a suggestion
to add an additional Long Term Goalto the list, that being Modernization. The “why” of Modernization is
to encourage efficiency with feedback from employees to help support the work of bringing NCRD into
the digital age.

Short Term Goals:
The purpose of this meeting was to categorize, prioritize and determine which Short Term Goals need

focus for the near future in order to get traction and implementation.

Mary stated that efforts toward securing additional revenue sources could be added to the Short Term
Goals which would fit under the Financial Health category. There was discussion regarding the
reestablishment of the Revenue Committee. Mary noted that we need to understand where we are, what
we need and how to get to capitalimprovement goals. Afinancial health assessment should be done,
with details, including actual cash and potentialincome amounts. Afterthatwe can approach fund
raising efforts for specific capital improvement projects under a 3-year plan. It was suggested that

B
\

)

PO Box 207 | 36155 9% St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

Marcus should work on the detailed cash flow analysis to project what capitalimprovements could be

funded in the next three years.

Short Term Categories were determined as follows to help prioritize the Short Term Goals:
Financial Health
Facilities
Programs/Operational Excellence
People/Talent
Community Connection

Each Short Term Goal was placed into one of the categories, number according to priority.

Financial Health

—
.

Detailed cash flow needs 3 years out

N

. Revenue generation/revenue committee support
. Costrecovery analysis (to inform programming)

a. Categorize internal departments and analyze
4. Consider redistricting

w

Facilities

1. Openthe New Pool/ Close and secure the Legacy Pool
2. Day to Day operations/capitalimprovements
a. Facility Health Assessment

Programs/Operations Excellence
1. Membership Software installation

a. Uniform pricing structure
b. Expand program hours

c. Launch new programs @

PO Box 207 | 361559t St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273




North County
Recreation District

d. Expand School Swim
i. After school, more lessons, measurable progress
2. Increase youth participation
3. Employee Manual/ Policy Manual update and digitize

People/Talent
1. Implement HR Best Practices
a. Staff setgoals and objectives
b. Formalannualreviews

2. Review organizational effectiveness

a. Organizational analysis
b. Develop a Volunteer Program consistent across departments managed by department

heads
Community Connection
1. Consistent community engagement
2. Form Advisory Councils by department (engage “power users™)
Modernization:

1. AU Short Term Goals belong in this category.

Recap of #1 priorities in each category with next highest inserted between:

Detailed Cash Flow
Revenue Committee/Cost Recovery Analysis

Open the New Pool/Close Legacy Pool :
Day to day operations @

PO Box 207 | 36155 9% St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

Membership Software Implementation
Youth Participation
Expand programming

HR goals and employee reviews
Employee Manual update
Review efficiencies

Community Engagement
Advisory Councils

Modernization
There was a question about NCRD events that happen just because they have been done before. It’s time
to look into the benefit of some of the events (monetarily and community engagement) in order to
evaluate the value of such events.
The meeting was closed at 5:20 pm

Respectfully submitted,

Jennie Meyers, Recorder

©)

PO Box 207 | 361559 St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

NCRD Financial Compliance Action Plan

Objective: To address and rectify the deficiencies identified in the 2024 audit and ensure compliance with
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS), Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), and best practices in
fiscal administration.

I. Governance & Budgeting Process
Deficiency: Inaccurate or legally noncompliant budget process
Action Steps:
1. Adopt a Legally Compliant Budget Calendar
o Implement a formal budget calendar in alignment with ORS 294.
o Ensure timely public notice, public hearings, and adoption.
2. Provide Budget Training to Key Personnel
o Conduct annual training for department heads and budget committee members.
o Topics: Local Budget Law, fund definitions, contingency/reserve policies.
3. Use of Budget Templates
o Standardize budget documents to clearly distinguish between:
» Proposed, approved, and adopted budget columns.
= Appropriated categories per fund (personnel, M&S, capital outlay, etc.).

II. Financial Reporting and Internal Controls
Deficiency: Inadequate fund accounting and reconciliation
Action Steps:
1. Chart of Accounts Redesign
o Reorganize the chart of accounts to align with recommended municipal fund structure.
o Use separate funds for restricted revenue sources (e.g., grants, capital reserve).
2. Monthly Bank Reconciliations
o Require reconciliations within 10 business days of month-end.
o Reconciliation review and sign-off by Finance Manager and Executive Director.
3. Fund Transfers '
o All fund transfers must be:
= Budgeted,
» Documented by resolution, and
= Reviewed by the Board.

I11. Documentation and Audit Preparation
Deficiency: Lack of audit-ready documentation and unclear fund activity
Action Steps:

1. Centralized Document Storage \
&P

PO Box 207 | 36155 9™ St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273




North County
Recreation District

-
==
Lasd

')

o All contracts, grants, and financial policies stored in a central shared drive.
o Organize by fiscal year for ease of auditor access.
2. Audit Prep Checklist
o Implement a detailed year-end checklist to be completed by Finance Manager.
o Ttems include retirement reconciliation, capital asset update, debt service schedule, and final
trial balance.
3. Quarterly Internal Reviews
o Quarterly internal audit by Finance Manager to pre-identify issues.

IV. Payroll and HR Oversight
Deficiency: Payroll not consistently reconciled or allocated correctly across funds
Action Steps:
1. Timesheet Policy Revision
o Ensure timesheets clearly allocate hours to programs/funds.
o Supervisor review and signature required before payroll is processed.
2. Payroll Allocation Matrix
o Develop a payroll allocation matrix updated quarterly.
o Reflect changes in staffing and grant/project funding.

V. Board Oversight & Transparency
Deficiency: Inadequate financial oversight and transparency
Action Steps:
1. Board Financial Dashboard
o Monthly dashboard of key financial indicators for each fund.
o Includes budget-to-actuals, bank balances, outstanding obligations, and variance commentary.
2. Quarterly Board Workshops
o In-depth financial workshops to review fund balances, budget forecasts, and upcoming
expenditures.

3. Public Transparency
o Post adopted budgets, audit réports, and financial summaries on NCRD’s website.

VI. Grant Management
Deficiency: Inconsistent tracking of grant revenues/expenditures
Action Steps:
1. Grant File Structure
o Each grant assigned a dedicated file with award letter, budget, draw requests, and close-out
documentation.
2. Separate Grant Fund Coding
o Code all grant transactions with unique identifiers for tracking.

POBox 207 | 361559t St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



C )
0“" H oy A

North County
Recreation District

3. Grant Calendar & Compliance Tracking
o Maintain a grant calendar noting reporting deadlines, draw schedules, and renewal dates.

VII. Capital Asset Tracking
Deficiency: Missing or inaccurate capital asset reporting
Action Steps:
1. Asset Inventory Update
o Full inventory of capital assets with photos, purchase documents, and location tags.
o Update annually and submit to auditors.
2. Depreciation Schedule Maintenance
o Ensure depreciation is recorded in line with policy and reviewed annually.

Implementation Timeline
Phase Tasks Deadline

Phase 1 B}ldget compliance calendar, bank reconciliation process, HR/payroll Sept 26, 2025
alignment

Phase 2 Grant tracking system, dashboard template, internal controls review Oct 31, 2025
Phase 3 Asset inventory, audit prep checklist, full documentation centralization ~Nov 28,2025

Phase 4 Board training, public transparency updates, internal financial review  Jan 30, 2026

Responsible Parties
« Finance Manager/Budget Officer (Lead Implementation)
« Executive Director (Oversight & Board Communication)
« Department Heads (Budget Compliance & Program Spending)
e Board of Directors (Oversight & Policy Adoption)

POBox207 | 3615509 St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-07
ARESOLUTION ADOPTING A FINANCIAL COMPLIANCE ACTION PLAN TO ADDRESS
AUDIT DEFICIENCIES IDENTIFIED IN THE 2024 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

-
-
+ e
("4”0.\: D\\_ .

WHEREAS, the North County Recreation District (NCRD) has received findings from the 2024 audit and a
letter dated July 7, 2025 from the Oregon Secretary of State highlighting deficiencies in financial operations,

internal controls, and statutory compliance; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors acknowledges the importance of sound fiscal management, adherence to
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS), compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), and
transparency in public financial administration; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Manager has developed a comprehensive Financial Compliance Action Plan to
address all deficiencies outlined in the 2024 audit and ensure timely corrective action in alignment with State

expectations;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of North County Recreation District
that:

Section 1. Adoption of Action Plan

The NCRD Financial Compliance Action Plan (attached hereto as Exhibit A) is hereby adopted in full and
shall be implemented as the guiding framework for financial remediation and compliance for fiscal years 2025-

2026.

Section 2. Immediate Priorities

The following elements shall be prioritized for immediate implementation by September 26, 2025:
« Adoption of a legally compliant budget calendar aligned with ORS 294.
« Standardization of budget documentation using apprqved templates.
o Realignment of the chart of accounts and timely reconciliation of all funds.

o Development of a payroll allocation matrix and documented timesheet policy.

POBox 207 | 361559!"St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

Section 3. Phased Implementation

The Action Plan shall be implemented in the following phases:

[Deadline |
Sept 26, 2025|

Phase |Focus
Phase lJ |Budget compliance, reconciliation, and payroll structure
Phase ﬂlGrant tracking, financial dashboards, internal control review JOct 31, 2025 I

Phase 3 |Capital asset inventory, audit readiness, and documentation centralization HNov 28, 2025!

[Phase 4 [Board financial training, transparency updates, and internal financial review [J an 30, 2026 ‘

Section 4. Oversight and Reporting

The Finance Manager shall serve as the lead for implementing the Action Plan, and shall report monthly to the
Executive Director and quarterly to the Board of Directors on progress, challenges, and completion status of
each phase. Reports shall include updated dashboards, financial metrics, and audit preparedness summaries.

Section 5. Board Commitment

The Board of Directors affirms its full support and oversight in executing this plan and commits to policy
adoption, training participation, and enhanced transparency in all fiscal matters.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the North County Recreation District this

day of , 2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Michael Howes, Chairperson Erin Laskey-Wilson, Secretary

ATTEST:

Justin Smith, Executive Director

Prepared by:

Marcus Runkle, Finance Manager

POBox207 | 361559t St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County Recreation District
Revenue and Expense Report

AA=Adult Activities AD=Administration AQ=Aquatics FIT=Fitness PAC=Performing Arts Center
YP=Youth Programs CARF=Capital Asset Reserve Fund ACPF=Aquatic Center Project Fund

Current percentage of the fiscal year: | 8.33% ]
Through July 31, 2025 FY-to-Date Annual Budget Remaining % Used
REVENUES--
Activities $ - $ 7,492.00 $ 7,492.00 0.00%
Aquatics $ 6,317.00 $ 113,219.00 $ 106,902.00 5.58%
Administration $ 3,833.02 $ 318,174.00 $ 314,340.98 1.20%
Fitness $ 12,481.00 $ 159,843.00 $ 147,362.00 7.81%
Performing Arts Center $ 4,341.30 $ 87,950.00 $ 83,608.70 4.94%
Youth Programs $ 16,172.60 $ 112,671.00 $ 96,498.40 14.35%
Non-Allocated $ 9,892.87 $ 1,710,979.00 $ 1,701,086.13 0.58%
Capital Asset Reserve Fund $ - $ 434,769.00 $ 434,769.00 0.00%
Aquatic Center Project Fund $ 230,000.08 $ 406,600.00 $ 176,599.92 56.57%
Total Revenues $ 283,037.87 $ 3,351,697.00 $ 3,068,659.13 8.44%
EXPENSES--
AA Staffing $ 710.70 $ 16,480.00 $ 15,769.30 4.31%
AA PR Taxes and Benefits $ 58.31 $ 1,280.00 $ 1,221.69 4.56%
AA Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 207.70 §$ 4,000.00 $ 3,792.30 5.19%
Sub-total AA Expenses  $ 976.71 $ 21,760.00 $ 20,783.29 4.49%
AQ Staffing $ 19,079.21 §$ 264,957.00 $ 245,877.79 7.20%
AQ PR Taxes and Benefits $ 2,020.92 % 127,338.00 $ 125,317.08 1.59%
AQ Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 764132 $ 75,657.00 $ 68,015.68 10.10%
Sub-total AQ Expenses  $ 28,741.45 $ 467,952.00 $ 439,210.55 6.14%
AD Staffing $ 34,145.70 $ 437,216.00 $ 403,070.30 7.81%
AD PR Taxes and Benefits $ 13,178.48 $ 100,718.00 $ 87,539.52 13.08%
AD Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 20,528.29 % 217,700.00 $ 197,171.71 9.43%
Sub-total AD Expenses  $ 67,852.47 $ 755,634.00 $ 687,781.53 8.98%
FIT Staffing $ 15,307.98 $ 211,652.00 $ 196,344.02 7.23%
FIT PR Taxes and Benefits $ 1,257.84 $ 31,341.00 $ 30,083.16 4.01%
FIT Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 2,492.76 $ 25,835.00 $ 23,342.24 9.65%
Sub-total FIT Expenses  $ 19,058.58 $ 268,828.00 $ 249,769.42 7.09%
PAC Staffing $ 1,748.00 $ 38,135.00 $ 36,387.00 4.58%
PAC PR Taxes and Benefits $ 136.30 $ 2,962.00 $ 2,825.70 4.60%
PAC Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 997.78 $ 95,299.00 $ 94,301.22 1.05%
. Sub-total PAC Expenses $ 2,882.08 $ 136,396.00 $ 133,513.92 2.11%
YP Staffing $ 11,984.37 $ 110,385.00 $ 98,400.63 10.86%
YP PR Taxes and Benefits $ 1,069.46 $ 23,215.00 $ 22,145.54 4.61%
YP Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 8,190.96 $ 38,056.00 $ 29,865.04 21.52%
Sub-total YP Expenses $ 21,244.79 $ 171,656.00 $ 150,411.21 12.38%
CARF Materials, Supplies, and Services $ - $ 266,600.00 $ 266,600.00 0.00%
Sub-total CARF Expenses % $ 266,600.00 $ 266,600.00 0.00%
ACPF Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 89,319.40 $ 406,600.00 $ 317,280.60 21.97%
Sub-total ACPF Expenses $  89,319.40 $  406,600.00 $  317,280.60 [NNIINSRSE
Total Expenses $ 230,075.48 $ 2,495,426.00 $ 2,265,350.52 9.22%
Green Favorable
Yellow Concerned




. North County Recreation District
Balance Sheet w/ Prev Month Comparison

Accrual Basis

As of July 31, 2025

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1st Security Bank - CKNG

1st Security Bank- DEBIT

LGIP

LGIP_NEW_POOL
FF&C Obligation Proceeds (LGIP)
LGIP_NEW_POOL - Other

Total LGIP_NEW_POOL

Edward Jones
Petty Cash

Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
1200 - Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Vacation Pay

2100 - Payroll Liabilities
Med Company
Med Employee
OR Unemp
OR WBF
OR Withholding
Retirement, NCRD Contribution
$S Company
S$S Employee
Withholding
2100 - Payroll Liabilities - Other

Total 2100 - Payroll Liabilities
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
FF&C Obligations Payable 2025
Premium on FF&C Obligations
GO Bonds Payable 2021
Premium on Bonds Payable
FF&C Obhligations Payable 2021

Total Long Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Jul 31, 25 Jun 30, 25 % Change
98,432.53 203,536.05 -51.6%
8,210.73 8,302.92 -1.1%
2,894,794.47 2,984,901.60 -3.0%
11,383.31 11,383.31 0.0%
-11,362.65 -11,362.65 0.0%
20.66 20.66 0.0%
2.70 2.70 0.0%
350.62 350.62 0.0%
3,001,811.71 3,197,114.55 -6.1%
230,000.00 0.00 100.0%
230,000.00 0.00 100.0%
3,231,811.71 3,197,114.55 1.1%
4,291,151.55 4,291,151.55 0.0%
-1,251,840.00 -1,251,840.00 0.0%
3,039,311.55 3,039,311.55 0.0%
6,271,123.26 6,236,426.10 0.6%
31,407.10 61,372.42 -48.8%
31,407.10 61,372.42 -48.8%
22,079.87 22,079.87 0.0%
576.69 -0.18 320,483.3%
576.69 -0.18 320,483.3%
-148.16 -232.47 36.3%
119.14 47.16 162.6%
2,686.00 40.00 6,615.0%
1,137.30 535.99 112.2%
2,463.62 -2.96 83,330.4%
2,463.62 -2.96 83,330.4%
2,237.00 175.00 1,178.3%
8,358.07 6,951.60 20.2%
20,469.97 7.511.00 172.5%
42,549.84 29,590.87 43.8%
73,956.94 90,963.29 -18.7%
1,940,500.00 1,940,500.00 0.0%
270,202.80 270,202.80 0.0%
4,295,000.00 4,295,000.00 0.0%
540,107.70 540,107.70 0.0%
3,145,000.00 3,145,000.00 0.0%
10,190,810.50 10,190,810.50 0.0%
10,281,773.79 -0.2%

10,264,767.44

24



North County Recreation District
Balance Sheet w/ Prev Month Comparison

Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2025
Jul 31, 25 Jun 30, 25 % Change

Equity
Temporary Fund Balance Forward -27,530,777.00 -27,530,777.00 0.0%
Capital Improvement-Assigned 2,161,140.55 2,161,140.55 0.0%
Capital Improvement-Restricted 5,235.00 5,235.00 0.0%
3000 - Capital Improvement-Unassigned 2.70 2.70 0.0%
General Fund-Nonspendable 224.00 224.00 0.0%
General Fund-Unassigned 91,590.50 91,590.50 0.0%
3900 - Retained Earnings 21,227,236.56 19,852,277.59 6.9%
Net Income 51,703.51 1,374,958.97 -96.2%
Total Equity -3,993,644.18 -4,045,347.69 1.3%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 6,271,123.26 6,236,426.10 0.6%

) 5)



| abeyd

6l ibE'e-
69926~
89'296-
89'296-

99ZLL'6-
¥0'€89'L-

00°0G¢-
00°05¢-

00°0ce-
00°¢ve-

00°061-
00°06%~

§6°04-
G6°0L-
S8°290'%-
§¢Lee

ve'lee-
92'982-
00'0gL-
000E}-
00°0€L-

00°0LL'E
000LL'E

00'6€L'G-

00°0ve-
00°0¥z-

00'L2G-
00°2es-

¥L2e8'v

00°¥45°9-
00'925°9-

-1Nds-

wawdinbg weuboid/eo0
a|qeAed Sjunoddy - 000Z
wawdinb3g weiboid/eomo

auedold
a|qefed sjunoody - 0002

alqeded suNoddY - 0002
sjeusiely |ood

Buisiuanpy
sjgeded sjunodoy - 000Z

8|qeded SuNoddY - 000Z
wswdinby

a|gqeded s)unoddy - 0002

-1nds-
s|geded sjunoody - 0002
8jqeAed S)UNODY - 000Z

saniger l1osAed - 0012
saiger joifed - 0012

alqeAed sjunoddy - 000Z
-1ds-
9|qeded sjunodaoy - 000Z

8|qeded sjunoooy - 0002
T IENHoMeNS Buipling 291

alqehed sjunoddy - 000Z

ajqehed sjunoddy - 000Z
-11ds-

ajgeded sjunoooy - 0002
s|ueln

-1ds-

a|qeded sjunoddy - 0002
* IeNpomels Buipling 21

junowy

uds

ed SIUN029Y - 0002

L909Z #ISND 267865 Gc0e/LElL0 g
"au| ‘Juepnig 1844
Bd SJUn0ddy - 0002 ¥I8¥¥8L TON JSWoOISND  "U9ZGLY G20Z/1LE/L0 g
- Yueg Aunosg 1S i8P¥8L T'ON Jowoisn) £v69¢ G20Z/LLIL0 O ud g
Bd SJUNoddY - 0002 FL8PP8L UON JSWOISND U #AU| Gc0Z/94LIL0 g
‘00 Isnij g jueq suazniy isai4
ed Sjunoddy - 0002 8EYYer6y #1020V TPSY6Y §20T/LZ/L0 18]
- ueg Aiunoag 1sy 8EYYSPEY #1000V 2r69e G20Z/LLIL0 D ud g
sebjjos194
- jueg Anoag Is| 62892 §202/£0/L0 O wud g
ed Sjunoody - 0002 LE¥QC-S §202/10/L0 ng
BugesH puoweiq
ed sjunoddy - 0002 €LEPE TON JBWOISN)  69¥r9.L §202/1e/L0 na
- jueg Aundag Isi €LEFE TON JBwoisny 87892 Gc02/L0/1L0 O~ wd id
eipapy A3unos
- jueg Aunoag is| 0812Z1# ANI 1¥692 G20c/LV L0 O~ Hud g
€d Sjunoddy - 0002 08L2ZL# ANI GZ02/94/L0 Ingd
271 ‘YNwsy 207 elquinjod
- jueg Aunses is| uoldsuuoy tajepn 01692 GC0Z/LLIL0 D d g
Bd SjUN022Y - 0002 UoORUU0D J9JEA  TTIHOIY G202Z/91140 2|
- jueg Awnoeg 1s| uolosuue) 1ajepp 11892 §202/20/£0 O~ nd g
wesleyeN Jo A1
- jueg Alunoeg Is| 10°9¢S 9289¢ §202/L0/L0 O wd |G
‘ejjuezuepy jo Ao
7= jueg Aunodag s 1£692 GZ0TPLIL0  uD Aungen
- jueg AUnosg sy 9£69¢ GzZ02/PLI20  TUuD Algen
Isnil SI1D
- djueg Aunoag Is| 1020YS9LL# 100V 66692 Geoe/ee/L0 O ud liid
Bd SjUN0JdY - 0002 1020PSO.LL# 10OV Geoe/vL/LO
- jueg Aunoag s LOZOYSOLL# 100V G/89¢ §202/20/1L0  TO-1d g
suonesuUNWWoy) Jaueyd
- yueg Aunosg is| sorueg Bujuoissiwwod |0od 18692 §20Z/eT/L0 O g
Bd Sjunoddy - 0002 aojnieg Bujuoissiuwod 1004 00Lld §202/91/L0 !
"au] ‘eAnde|jo9 ubiseq NG
- jueg Aunoag is| 100d MON Jo} sJoyoeelg  ""OHOV §202//0/20 "D ud g
slayoes|g eyuling
- jueg Alunoag Is| 02042 §c0e/8T/L0 O wd g
ed sjunoddy - 0002 1 rA 4R §202/€2/20 g
Jisnjp epoaseg
- yueg Aunoag 1St 6l0.2 G20¢/8¢e/L0 O~ iwd liid
Bd SjuUnodoYy - 0002 Ge8elL0 §202/82/L0 g
za1ad Aojysy
- jueg Ajunoss 15t HOV §202/9¢/L0 399/Yo
uozewy
- jueg Aunoeg is| sbuljiey 82042 §20Z/82/L0 O wud g
ed Sjunoddy - 0002 sbuiiey 1002 §¢02/€T/L0 ng
uopesliqey gy
UNOIIY owap wny aeq adAL

sz0zZ AInp

JopudA Aq 3si uonoesued |
JoLI}SIg UoNjEald9y AJUNnoH YON




Z abed

000 a|qehed sjuncody - 000z
L1°02)- ajgeded sjunoddy - 000Z
L0021 sajddng
00699 a|qeded sjunoddy - 0002
00°699- salddng weiboid/eom0
00'6v9'6 -1Nds-
oLoLL'oz- ajqeled sunoooy - 0002
0r'ZL6'6- s|qeAed sunoddy - 00T
or'zLe's- -11ds-
zL9g)- ajqeded sunodoy - 0002
AR sal|ddng woausse|D
04%09'2- T leNspomang ‘Bulpiing 2L
000 alqeded sunod9dy - 000Z
Lv'2)L8- a|qeded SUNoadY - 0002
aats sasuadx3 jjoihed - 0959
Y5 0L ajgeAed sjunoody - 0002
05'€62'02- ajqefed sjunoddy - 0002
06'€6.2'02- YN sHomeus Buiping z9)
¥ 09} 8|qeAed s)unodoy - 0002
¥y 091" WSJSAS Wuely a1
00'62L- 3lqeded SJuno2y - 0002
00" 765~ a|qeAed s|unodoy - 000C
00'6cl- S9OIAIBG |BUOISSS)0.H
00'v65- SOOIAISG |BUDISSSJ0Id
16'802- leNSpomels bulpiing Zg1
8L IS 0}
8L YSr- 1o
rANCIR: S 1o
Z9°628- ajqeded sunoaoy - 0002
6518 a|qeded S)uNod0Y - 000Z
79628~ le}
6518 1o
86'9L9- ajgeled sunoody - 0002
85°'919- aoueuduieyy uswdinby
junowy nds

- yueg Aunoag 1s)

< = yueg Aundag ISt

“Bd SUNOJOY

- 0002

- yueg AUnoss 1s|

“Bd SIUNOOOY

“"gd SIUN00Y

- 000C

- 000¢

“ - yueg AJunoss 1s|
- yueg Aunoes Isi

g SUNODDY -

0002

- ueg Aunoag is|

'ed SjUNOAY

g d SJUNOOOY

- 0002

- 0002

- yueg Aunoes Is|

- jueg Aunoaeg is|

“'Bd SIUNOODY

- 0002

" - yueg Ajunoag 1sy

- yueg Aunoag 1s|

“"Bd SJUN02DY

- 000¢

- jjueg AuNdag 1s|

"'Bd SIUNODOY

- 0002

- yueg Ajunoag Is|
- jueg Aunoeg 1s)

'ed SJUNOODY -
“"d SJUNOODY -

"Bd SjUNOIDY -
'Bd SjUNOAY -

“"Bd SJUNOJDY -
"B SIUN0ODDY -

0]0]074
0002

0002
0002

0002
000¢

- jueg Aunoag 1s|
“ - jueg AUnoag 1s|

'ed SjUNOIdY
'Bd SjUNOJdY

- 0002
- 0002

- yjueg Aunoag is|

'Bd SUN0JADY

jJunosoy

- 0002

LEV0 ANI “AIOA £669¢2 G202/£2/L0 O g g
JoyJE S1ouled BJIUBZURK
2669¢ G202/c2/L0 O-wd g
dAVD S2C0T/vLIL0 g
uap[oo) Aqqr
620202 ‘dl £889¢ §202/L0/L0 O uding
62,0202 -al -Ge0e G202/10/L0 2]
san1) uobaiQ jo anbean
004 MaN G20Z/LE/L0 g
1004 MmaN 16692 §c0g/ee/L0 O wd g
1004 MaN 8¥69C S20T/LLIL0 O-lud g
[00d mMaN G202/941L0 ng
dnoasy ysopy
juawesinquiisy 1¥692 GZ0zZ/LLIL0 - lwd g
juswesinquiisy  "UMooD G20Z/911L0 g
Hnauoy Aoy
saljddng Jsjus) anjenby - juswesnquiey  °z8z.0 S202/82/L0 g
1004 MaN - Juswiasingquuisy ‘dlOA 06692 GZ02/e2/1L0 O ud g
ywsg uisnp
L6 - uswusnipy xe| LD 7692 §202/L41L0 O ud g
Lv6 - Juawisnlpy xel LD b Lye S20eivLILO IS ]
sdl
7889z  GZOZ/LO/LO  UO-lwd g
*ouj ‘au309|3 puelu|
80GL# Jowoisn) £204¢ Gc0e/8ciLa O lwd
80G L# Jswolsnd G202/92/L0
80G L # Jowolsnd 18892 G202/L0/120 O wd liid
80G1# JoWoisny 11€28 G202/10/L0 g
01dIuog|
GZ0T 2Un[ SvOIRS [BUOISSSj0Id [AAV XA §¢0¢/82/L0 O wud g
GZ0¢ 2unf S3VINBG [BUOISSBJ01d 08892 G202/L0/L0 O~ Wd
Gz0z AN s80puRg [BUOISS3J01d ¥8v801 §202/¥0/L0
G20¢ aunf S80IAI8g [BUOISSSjOld 20¥801 G202/€0/20
sIomMsuy N¥H
Z€22€ 90000 £20b# 140y ""LL168 G202/62/L0 g
jodoqg swoH
€/20¢ -1 oY ""8LOED G202/1LE1L0 g
€220¢ Al 1woy G202/1LE/IL0 g
€2¢0¢ ‘Al 1oy '20-6¢2 G202/62/L0
£220¢ Al 0oy 120.L¢ §202/82/L0 O~ wwd g
€220¢ ‘Al 100y 68692 G20e/EC/l0 O ud g
€.20¢ Qi 100y "'20-62 G202/22/L0 g
€220¢ ‘a1 10y 106 G202Z/S1L1L0 ig
(HS) 9711 ‘suonels 0OSYH
LS1G90V1# "AU| 8869¢ Gcog/ec/L0 O wd g
2S1G90¥ L# "AUj TLGO0v S202/81/L0 g
SURIDIUYD3| AuUIYoRpy SSauUj4
NETT] wnp ajeq adAL

gzoz Aine

JOpudA Aq )si] uonoesues |
19143181 uonealsay Ajunon YUoN



¢ afey

8L L¥E-

€1'69L'L-
96'298'¢-
10094
000

000
00'¥Ge-
00822
00°65-

%44
oceet-
oceet-
LLvbl-
ozeel-
oceet-

§8'09¢-
00°004-

96°8¢€9-
9L )L

00°0cL-
000¢L-

0c'gle-
ogsle-

00618°L-
00618°L-
006184~
00'618°}-

99'¥S§1-

8¢¢6”
LE°€1-
LE°EL-
LEEL-
8226~
FAR AN
LE0L-

ajgeded sunoody - 0002

sasuadx3] |j0JARd - 0969
sasuadxg jjoshed - 0959
sasuadx3] |joJAed - 0959
a|qeAed SjUN02Y - 000Z
sasuadx] |joihed - 0959
Buiployyim ¥o
BUIPIOYUIM HO
Buipioyym o

a|qefed sjunadsoy - 000Z
a|qeAed SjuUnoddY - 000Z

$asUddI P suondadsu|
sasuadx] |[oJhed - 09G9

a|qeded sjunoody - 0002
sosuol 1§ suonoadsu|

s|eolway) [0od
a|qeAed sjunoddy - 000Z

-1Nds-
a|qefed Sjunoosdy - 0002

alqeded Sjunoody - 0002
-1Nds-

sjgeled sjuNoavy - 0002
-1ds-

a|qeded sjunoddy - 0002
-1Nds-
sjgeded sjunodoy - 0002
-1nds-

a|qehed sunoody - 000Z

sjqeAed SjUNO2dY - 000Z
a|qeded sjunoddy - 000Z
-1Nds-
sjgeded sjunoody - 000Z
sa|ddng
-11dS-
a|qeded sjunoddy - 0002

-ueg Aunoeg Is|

*-yjueg flunoag is|

- yueg Aunoag 1s|

- ueg Ajunoag 1s|

- yuegq AlUnoeg 1S
“"Bd SIUNOJVY - 0002

- jueg Aunoag Js|

"* - jueg Ajunosg is|,

" -jueg Aunoss is|

" - ueg Aunoss 1s)
* - yueg AUNoag is|

""Bd SJUNOJY - 0002
"Bd SJUN0JJY - 0002

*-sueg Alunoag Is|
"Bd SIUNOODY - 000Z

- jueg Alunoag is|

* - jueg Aunoag is|

"Bd SjUNoJdY - 0002

T-yueg Aunoos ISt

*-jueg Aunoag 1s|
"Bd SIUNOJDY - 000Z

“- yueg Ajunoag is|

“ed SJUNGOOY - 000Z

‘- jueg Aunosg 18|

“"gd SIUNOIDY - 000Z
- yueg Aunoag 1|
""Bd SIUN0YDY - 000Z

" - jueg Apnoeg Is|

- jueg Aundag s
" - jueg ALnoag Is|
“"ed SJUN0%VY - 000Z
- ueg Ajunoag 1s)
“Bd SIUN09Y - 0002
“"Bd SIUN0DY - 000Z
- yueg Aunoeg is|

£6G.0¢ Lwolsny

8-L21¥150 ‘dIOA
8-221i¥1 50 :dIOA
8-LZI¥1S0
8-L21¥1S0
8-LZl¥1S0

JUDLWISSaSSY pund Jijsuag SIayIoAA
06SEY # Nuad Jajiog
06GEY # NWIad Jojiog

JUBLUSSBSSY pun4 J4BUdE SJIONIOA
DBSE # NS Jajiog
06GEY # ey Ja|iog

0-60v1£2-00 “ON 192l0ud

001/66€/36€//6E#
00¥/66€/86¢/L6E#

293(-A0N-100:6ulg
938@-roN-100:Bulig

Buiig Aluuop
Bung Aluuow

2l0WaY SBONIBS | |
2J0Way SODIAIS ||
sjowWwey S89Ieg ||
210WoY SIVINLS |

€¥8621 ‘ANI

LEVO ANI
sofuey) a1015-u|
safiieyn ai01g-u|
sabieyn a1015-u|

2870 ANI
sabueyn a10)g-u|
sabiey) 21013-uj

junowy

nds

Junoddy

16892 G20z/L0/20  "O-lwd g
uoneWOoINyY 32O JY1oed
HOV G202/S2/L0 ¥o8yd
HOV G20e/ve/L0 308y
HOV GCO0C/LLILO 084D
2569¢ GC0T/LLIL0 D wd g
-800-0 G202/LLV1L0 ng
6£69¢ SZ0Z/PL/L0  UuD Anpgen
8€69¢ Sc0T/ivLILO uo Aiger
GE69Z SZ02Z/PLIL0  UD Alngern)
anuaaay jo Juswuedaqg uobaip
G6669¢ G202/e2/L0 O ud g
16692 G20T/LLIL0 O-lwd g
GS20¢/91/L0 d
v4am G202/L0/L0 g
06892 G202/L0/L0 O-wd (iid
ZL0L0 §202/10/L0 g
ssouisng 'g Jawnsuo, Jo juswyedaq uobalQ
HOV Ge0Z/SLILO 3I3YD
ZOONN
§20.2 §202/8¢/L0 O ud g
ou| ‘Bunsa) jsemypou
POy G20e/1€120
6889¢C G20T/L0/.0 O~ lwd
‘09 JaquInT woeyaN
8889¢ G202/L0/L0 O~ wud g
G202/L0/L0 Ig
Aouaby Jojepp a)sepp Aeg wajeyaN
1889¢ G2¢02/L0/L0 O ud g
TOTLA S¢0¢/10/L0 ng
1914AsSOy
06692 Ge02/LLiZ0 O d g
€461 G202/911L0
98892 G20Z/L0/L0  O-iwd g
"T10L0 G20Z/10/L0 g
Yoo Assop
58892 G202/L0/L0 O wd g
) JaquinT BHUBRZUB
¥20.2 §202/82/L0 O~ wd (g
6692 ge0e/ee/L0 O wd g
§c02/eClLO g
61769¢ G20g/LLL0 O d |l
811 §G202/911L0
TI9LLL G202/9L1L0 ng
¥889¢ G202/L0/L0  TO-lwd g
SPo04 Ysal{ BUBZUB
wnpn ajeq adAL

IET]

szoz Aine

lopuap Aq is1 uonoesueld|
JoUISIq uonealsady AJunos YUoN



¢ abed

000
000

Ly /E0'e-
1y'L80%-

Y0'SLL

000
000

00°0¥¢-
00°0ve-

00°00¢'6-
00°00€'6~

00°09€°L-

L1'Lee-
Lize-

88°0¢-
88°0¢-
1£9'08%-
06'GZL-
6¥°961-
6v°961-

05°08%-

[RwA Ay
1L°969'9
129699
Llote-

00°660°L-
00'186°L-
G9Z80°¢-
69'280'¢c-

62y
6T €ri-

junowy

a|qeded SjUNo2dY - 0002

“"1d 1004 2 11D 2ienby MBN

sjqefed s)unoody - 0002
-LNds-

ajqeled snoddy - 0002

a|qeAed SUNO2YY - 0002
sjuelo)

slqeAed s)unooay - 000Z
sjuess

8|qeded s)unosy - 0002

" leN sHomaNs Bulping 2L

a|qeAed sjunoady - 0002

o|qeded S|No2DY - 0002
o

ajqeded sjunoddy - 0002
sjuels)
s|qefed s)unoday - 0002
sjuelo

alqefed sjunoddy - 0O0Z
-1Nds-

d|qeded sjunoddy - 0002
a|qeAed SJUNO22Y - 0002
a|qeAed SIUNO2YY - 000Z
-1dSs-

alqeded sjunoddy - 000Z
a|qeAed sjunoddy - 0002
aoUBUS)UIRI J0]RIBUDL)
s|qeAed Sunoady - 0007

dUBUIUIEB JojeIaUaD)

s|qeied SjunNooaoy - 0002
S20IAIDG |eUOISSSJ0Id

"t - yueg Alunoes 1s|
""ed SWIN0YYY - 000T

- jueg Alunoag is|
"ed Sjunodvy - 0002

- jueg Ajunoag is|

- yueg Aunoag 1St
"Bd SIUNO2%Y - 0002

e - ueg AlUnoag I1s|
"Bd S|UN03DY - 0002

" - sjueg Anoag is)
"""ed SIUNCODY - 000T

- jueg Ajunoag 1s|

- jueg Aunoag is|
2 SJUNOVY - 000Z

“* - jueg Aunoag 1s|
"Bd SUN09Y - 0002
- ueg AUndag is|
“"Bd SWNODY - (00T

- ueg Alunoeg 1s|
“'Bd SJUNODY - 0002

- ueg Aunosg S|
- jueg Aunoeg ISt
" - jueg Aunodag Is|
"ed SjUN0ddy - 0002
- ueg Aunoag 1sy
" - ueg Aunoag is|
Bd SIUNOJ2Y - 0002
< -jueg Alunoes 1s|
“'Bd SJUNODDY - 000C

- jueq Aunoeg is|
“'ed SjUNOddY - 0002

ndg

JunoddyY

‘AIOA 19692 §202/LLIL0 O d lilg
‘AIOA i SsIBN §202/911L0 mng
1ayjeeyos wiy
9rL6¢ 0969¢ §e0c¢/LLL0 O ud |iig
9r.L6¢ G202/91120 ng
and yoouwe(|iL
suopoa|g ‘0z Ael 16892 §202/20/20 O wud g
819 KunoD yooweyiL
wnasniy 4y 0} dul piaid ‘dIoA 6669¢ G20g/2HI0 O jud g
wnasniy 41y 0} duy pi_id :aIoA G202/911L0 nd
wnasnyy iy Yoowe|jiL
P08E# a010AU| 8669¢ G2O0¢/LLILO O lwd g
PO8EY# S010AU| G20c¢/9L1L0 g
2921AI98 d|(enod g dnindag joamg
Ajeusd 16692 §20Z/ee/L0 O wd liid
Aleued  d9dD  SZOZ/E0/L0 g
03Q uobaip jo ajerg
s901M9G Bunum uesH 9689¢ §¢02/L0/£0 D wd g
Ddimeg uerg
€420€ Al oy 1669¢ §¢0c/LLiL0 D ud g
€220€ ‘I P0oY  TUZH#AU| §202/94/20 ng
110 uopjeys
920.¢ G202/82/L0 "0~ jud g
goee G20¢/S¢iL0 12|
§689¢ G202/L0/20 O~ ud |Iig
6¥Ee §202/20/L0 g
JMNI [8A02S
92052/ “'ON 100V #6892 G6202/L0/20 TO-wud g
9/062L “ON WY GZL0L0 §20¢/10/L0 g
wo29ja] wajeyaN |1y
Gz0Z dunr sajeg Ais|jeo £689¢ §20¢/L0/L0 "D Wd g
jo0g uiqoy
19l01d dN 6012 193l0id 96692 §e0z/ee/L0 O wd g
Josfoid dN 6012 308loid 96692 G20e/ZML0 O Hud
aloid dN 6012 109[0id 6706012 §202/9L120 g
$S109)YIIyY poomiIsys uosuaqoy
G2669€080L# ¥00v 26892 Gc0c¢/L0/L0 O~ wd g
uobeiQ wiaysapn ABojoday
£0G1000} "ON 8310AU| GG692 SC0e/LLIL0 D |iig
uonddjoLd ali4 MNd
129€0106ZMS  £01Z6S1L S202/vTIL0
£29201L06ZMS S69¢ §202/L11L0
129¢0L06ZMS  ¥88PGER G202/91/L0 !
jeD UOSIalad
818820 :9010AU| £669¢ G20Z/ZH1L0 O hwd g
818820 :9010ALY §G202/91L0 g
*JU| ‘Swa)sAg alempyos yead
owan wnp ajeq adAj

29

lopuap Aq }si7 uonoesuel |
JouL)SIg Uoealsay AJunon YloN



G abegd

00980}~ sjqefed sjunoddy - 000z T - jueg Alunoag Is|
00°9€0°L- SBOINISG [BUOISSBI0I4  “"ed SIUN0JDY - 000Z
00°0 "TjeNOpomelg Buiping 291 ed SIUN0SY - 0002
6l°16¢- a|gefed sjunoddy - 000z - dueg Alunoes is)
62'€Z- solddng |euoyuepr  “ed SIUNOJIY - 0002
18'812- -1dS-  ed SiUN0dYY - 000T
$9/€2- -1NdS-  "ed SUn0ooy - 000Z
$E€S1- -1INdS-  "Bd SUNoody - 0002
181 a|qeded sjunoooy - 000z T - Yueg Alundeg 1s|
18 LY -1INMdS-  ""Bd SIUN099Y - 00T
06'¥9¢- slqeded sUNooY - 000Z - ueg AlUNoas Js|
00021~ a|qefed s|nodoy - 000z ' - jueg Alunoeg 1)
8€'8Y8- -LNdS- - jueg Aunoeg s
Y0'v0g's- -1NdS- - ueg Alunoeg 1sy
vreel- -1dS- - yueg Aiunoag sy
6.'9€6'G- ajqeied sjunoooy - 000z T - yueg AUndag Is|
unowy Jids UNo3Y

€.12G “'ON 3210AU| dIOA

8261 "'ON Jowolsny
9Z61 'ON Jawosn)
8261 "ON Jawolsnd
gZ6) "ON Jewosn)
Q761 "ON JoLolsny)
8Z61 TON Jawolsno)
9761 "ON Jawoisn)

lemauay xog
9281.2£€591 # Bunpel) go 9Zv9z81-16
9288€2£59| # Buporll gO 87¥9281L-16
9Z8902£59} # Bunpoes) 9O 82y9z8L-16

§20190dN *'ON J8pIO

owsay

86692  S20Z/€Z/20 UO-wd g

L8169 GZ0Z/OLILO ng
YO MZUSYM

2.28  §Z02/0E/L0 e
‘U] Jedc) 1o)epn

12012 SZ0Z/8T/L0  TO-wwd g

LLBOLSL  G202/ST/L0 Ing

9L€9LS5l  SZ0Z/STIL0 e

€/Z9LSL  SZ0Z/ET/LO g

2LZ9LGL  SZ0Z/ETILO g

29692  S20Z/LLL0 O~ wud g

TL#A GZ0Z/9LILO ing

00692  620Z/L0/20 O~ wdng
"0 UOS|apN 'J J18)jepy

66892  §20T/L0/L0 O~ ud g
sdsn

fed-3  gzogzwl/iL0  TuD Allger]

fed-3  gzoezwLiL0  TuD Alngenr

fed-3  gzoz/L/i20  tuD Amger
Ainseal] sajelg payun

86892  §Z0Z/L0/20  O-lwd g
3NN

wnN ajeq adA)

gzoz Aine

Jopua Aq )si uonoesued |
JouysIg uoneasssy AjunoH YoN

20



%0°0 00'009'2- 000092 000 %00 00°009'2- 000092 000
%0'0 00'000'}- 00°000'} 000 %00 00°000'L~ 00°000'} 000
%00 00°002- 00°002 00'0 %00 00°002- 00°002 000
%E'Y 66'066'9L- 00°092'ZL 10'69. %EY 66'066'9L- 00°09L 2L 1069
%9’V 691221~ 00'082'} L£'8S %9t 69°122'1- 00°082'} 1£'8g
%E'p 0£'692'GL- 00°08%'9L 0470k %E'Y 0£'692'GL- 00°08%'9L oLoLL
%y 0€'692'GL- 00'08t'9L 0L0LL %E'¥ 0€'892'51- 00'08%'9L 0L0kL
%0°0 00°Z6¥'L- 00'26¥%'2 000 %00 00°26¥%'L- 00'26%'L 000
%00 00°26¥'L- 00°2Z6¥'L 000 %0°0 00'26¥%'2- 00°Z6%'2 000
%0°0 00262~ 0026¥'L 000 %0°0 00°Z6%'2- 00'26%'L 000
%00 00°002- 007002 000 %0°0 00°002- 00°002 000
%00 00'1L90°L- 00'190'} 000 %0°0 00'1L90'L- 00°L90°} 00°0
%00 00°1L90°L- 00'L90'L 000 %00 00°190'}- 00'190'} 000
%00 00'L90'L- 00'180't 000 %0°0 00°190°L- 00'190'} 000
%00 00'1L£0'9- 00°L£0'9 000 %00 00'L€0'9- 00'1€0'9 00°0
%0°0 00°LE0't- 00'le0'y 00’0 %00 00" LE0'¥~ 00'LED'Y 000
%00 00°000°2- 00°000'2 000 %00 00°000'2- 00°000'2 000
%00 00'000'2- 00°000'2 000 %00 00'000'2- 00°000'2 000
%0'0 00°002- 00°002 000 %00 00°002- 00°002 000
%00 00002~ 00'002 000 %00 00'002- 00°002 000
%00 00°002- 00°002 00°0 %00 00'002- 00°002 000
19bpng jo 9, Jabpng 1an0 § jebpng sz Inr 3obpng jo % 19bpng 1910 § 3ebpng szinr
IvioL SANIARIY

§994 JuaAZ/ANANOY

sayddng
suoneuoq
S3DINYIS % STVINILYIN

SADIAYIS TINNOSH3d 18101
sasuadxy ||o1hed - 0959
S3ILINILOY 2101

10}BUIPI00Y) SANIARIY
S3LLIAILOY

S$301AH3S TINNOSH3d
asuadx3y

Wold SS0I5
|SWoIY; [B30L
JINODNI [ej0)
suopeuoq
sdiysiejoyosg pue sjuess) [eJOL
pajoLnsay [ejol
sdiysiejoyog
(LRI EEN]
sdiysiejoyog pue sjueis
sefaeyo pue s994 198 [€J0L
aeYj0 - sebaeyo pue soo4 Jasn
$334 SIPANOY [BIOL
jeJsuas) - yodsueay 9 sead duag
$094 saplAOY
sobJeys pue sead Jasn
aosuejeg pund buluuibag jejoL
PajoLIsaY - DN |ejoL
sdiysiejoysg
P3j0LSAY - OMN
souejeg pung BujuuiBag
ANOONI

awoouy
asuadxg/ewoou) Ateupio

Jeak 19Bpnq Jo %¢e¢°8 - 520Z ‘L€ AInp ybnoayy suonoesuel|
G202-¥20Z Ad ‘Pun4 |elauas ‘|lenjoy "sA Jebpng ‘senAnoy

JoUISIq Uonealday AJunon YUON

s|seg |eNId0Y



00'89Z'71-

6C'162°C1

%8'9 6T°162°Ch 1196 %8'9 00°892°v1- 11926
%89 BT 162'C) 00°892'v1- 12'926- %8'9 62L62'EL 00°89Z" ¥4~ 1296
%sv  62€8L0T 00'092'42 12916 %G b 6z¢82'02- 0009212 \roe
%S 0€26L'e- 00°000'% 04202 %Z'S 0£'26L'e" 00°000'% 0.'202
%601 [$VAVA aom 047202 %86'€0L L2 00°002 0272402
%6'€0L 0L 00°002 04202 %6'€0L 0LL 00002 02202
1ebpng jo % _39Bpng Jar0 § jobpng sz Inp 3obpng jo % 19bpng J8A0 § yobpng sz Ine
IV1OL SomIARdY

22)

awoau} 19N
awosu| AeulpiQ 19N
asuadx3 jej0]
SIDIAYIS 2 STVRIALVYIN [B30L
sann eyoL

auoydpaaulajug
saplnn

deah 1abpng Jo 9%,£¢°8 - §Z0Z ‘L€ Aine yBnoayy suonsesuesj
GZ0Z-7Z0Z Ad ‘pund [eiauas) ‘[enjay sA Jabpng ‘saiIARoy

3Jo1)SIg uoneald9y AJUN0H YMON

siseq [eniooy



2% )

%S L 09'26¢€'L- 00°000'8 Qr'209 %S'L 09°26€'2- 00000'8 0’209 suopeaya/bujulelL
%67 Tr'S09'L- 00'000'8 85°v6¢ %6 Y5092 000008 95'¥8E sieyajely 100d
%S¥ P 22T 9L 00°000°Zk 99'CcLL %Sv ¥EL22'GL- 00'000'2L 99'¢LL sjeawsyy jood
%00 00°005'2" 00°005'Z Q00 %0'0 00°00§'2- 000062 000 s3sUadX3 SU0ISSAN0D
%eT'se 09'¢SP- 00002 or'eve %T'GE 09'€Gr- 00004 ar'ove $3SU33|" B suopaadsul
SAAMAS 2 STVIMILYIN
%¥'G 18761 LLE 00°S6T'Z6E €L°00L'12 %¥'S LBY6LLLE" 00662 T6€ €L'00b'Le SADIAYAS TINNOSHIL €30l
%04 €LELT'Y 00'689'9 JXAYi %04 €LELT'Y 00'589'9 LT uopnqLiuod QUON Juswsaapey
%00 00'896'2¢- 00'896'2¢ 0oo %00 00'896'22- 00'896'2¢ [elo)e} JURINSY| Yj|eaH
%8'q sezie'se 00798'92 GO'6PSL %8S gezLe'se 00'¢98'9C SO6PS'L sosuadx3 [|oihed - 0959
%L 61'218°Sye- 00°'256'92 12'6/0'6L %L BL°LI8'SVT 00°256'79Z 12'640'6L SOILVNOY lej0L
%6°L 66'€LL'86" Q0'084 201 Lr'9gr's %8'L 65'€LL'B6" 00°08}'L0}b Ly'ogr'e sprenbajq
%00 00 LrL'eh- 00°L¥L'2H 000 %00 00°LFL'TL- 00°LpL'TL 000 doueudjulel sonenby
%L’ 8L'G6B'EY- 00°08¢€'LY TTYeL'E %lbL 8/'GB6'EV- 00'08€'2p Tv8e'e sJojanysu] sayenby
%69 \8'EP'Ge- 00'9LE' LT 6L'2.8'L %69 L8EVF'GZ- 00'9LE' L2 6L'2/8') sabieuely wesboid wimg
%9'L 19'216'99- 00'EE'0L BE'9SE'S %9 L 19 LL6've 00'¥€€'0L 6£'95¢€'G 1d "x3 "8y HoR0aIIg sopenby
SOLLYNDY
%00 00'€Z8'04- 00€28'04 00’0 %00 00'€Z8'0L- 00'€28'0L 000 NOILYHLSININGY 1B10L
%00 00'€Z8'0L- 00'€28'0L [ele)e] %00 00'€28'0Z" 00'€28'04 000 4ejs 19U sWoIIM
NOILYHLSININGY
SIJIAYAS TINNOSHId
asusdx3y
%9’ 00'206'901~ 00BlZ'eLL 00'ZLE'Q %9'G 00'206'901- 00'BLZELL 00LIE'9 joid ssol9
%9'S oo.mom,mo - 00'6LZELL 00ZLE'9 %9'G 00'206'901- 006LEELL 00'LIE'S awoay| [ejo L
%9’'S 00'¢06'90}- 00'6LTELL 00°ZLE'9 %9'G 00'206'901- 00'6LZ'ELL 00°2LE'9 JNOONI [ejoL
%00 00'005'c 00°005'T Q00 %00 00'005°2C" 00005'C 000 suojjeuog
%00 00'000°e" 00'000'c 000 %00 00'000'€" 00'000'e 000 3WDIU| SUCISSIIUOY
%0C 00'0z6'e- 00026 000 %00 00'0z6'e- 00026'¢ ooa jpenued 5041
%00 00'66€'vL- 00'66€'7L Q00 %00 00'66E'¥1- Q0'66£'Y | elo)e] sdjysie|oyog pue sjueig [ejoL
%00 00'66€'yL- 00'66€'FL 000 %00 00°66€'P 1~ 00667} 000 PajoLsay jejoL
%00 Q0'66€"LL- 00'66€E'LL 000 %00 00°66€'LL- Q0'66¢€ LI 000 95# NMN wesBold wimg |ooyss
%00 00°000'¢" 00°000'€ 000 %00 00°000'¢- 00000'€ 000 sdyssejoyog
pajosay
sdiysiejoysg pue sjuelo
%T'L 00°€80°18" 00°00%'/8 00'21€'9 %T'L 00'€80°I8- 00°00%'28 00°2LE'9 sabieyo pue saad Jasq [ejoL
%0'0 00°00%'Z- 00°00¢'Z 000 %00 00°00¥'Z- 00°00¢'Z 000 $394 WIMS |00LIg-ald
%L 00'€89'8.- 00°000°68 00°L1E'9 %L 00'€89'84" 00°000'68 002L€'9 $984 Jas() sopenby
mmm..m:U pue saa4 Jasfy
%00 00°000'Z- 00°000'Z 000 %00 00°000°'2- 000002 000 aduejeg pund fujuubag ejoL
%00 00000'T" 00'000'2 oolo %00 00°000'2- 00°000'2 oco| Pa324IS3Y - OMN el l
%00 00°000'2- 00°000'2 000 %00 00°000°C- 000002 000 sdyysiejoyog
PajoHIsoy - OMN
aauejeg pung bujuuibag
IWOONI
awoau]
asuadxzjauwosu) AeuipiQ
Bend 10 % 126png 4940 § B sz Ine 126png Jo % 39Bpng JarQ ¢ 196png SZ Inp
aviol sagenby

1eak Jabpng Jo %8 - §Z0Z ‘1€ AN ybnoayy suonsesues)

$202 - ¥202 Ad ‘pund jesouan ‘1enjay "sa 3pbpng SOILYNOV
1914381 uonealday AJunod YUoN

s|seq [eniooy



%E'9 S5°80£°ZeE 00'EEL'PSE" Sy yeyTe- %E"9 69'808°2¢€€ 00'SEL'P5E" SryzY'eT-
%e'9 §5'808'ZEE 00'€EL¥5E- SY'vzr'Ze- %E'9 55'80€'ZEC 00'€EL'¥5E- Syvey'ce
%L'9 SS0LZ'6EY 00'ZS6'2L9¥ SLpL'eT %L'9 55012 6E- 00°'256' L9 SvLbL'8e
%L°0L 89°G10'89- 00°259'2 Zep9'L %Lk 29°G10'89 00'459'62 78'Lp9'L
%EpL 7L leg'ee- 00°25¥'6€ 82'529'G %EPL zLLeg'ee- 00'25¥'6E 82'629'G
%00 00'005'Z2- 0000622 000 %00 00°005'2Z- 00'005'2Z 000
%60 Z5v96'E- 00'000'% ar'se %60 25'p96'e- 00°000'F 8r'se
%6 68200y 00'/59'% LL'6V9 %B'EL 69200t 002697 L1679
%b'6E 0058t~ 00008 00°GLE %V 6e 00°68%- 00008 00°GLE
%0004 00'€6Z % 000 00'€6Z'% %0'004 00'€6Z'% 000 00'86Z'%
%ty Y IVE 000052 69°ZeC %y Ve oL 00°00§'Z 69°CEE
6png 10 % 106png 4970 § Bpng szing 126png 4o % 16png Jon0 § 1wbpng sz
aviol sajjenby

awoau| JaN
awoou| Aleuspio 39N
asuadx3 [ejol
S3ADIAYIS B STVINALYIN 1ejoL
saylnn (ejoL

auedoid

Jajep

auoYdgoussju}

lamag

no

Aowosi3
sapupn

1eaf yobpnqg 3o %,£¢'8 - §ZOZ ‘1€ AIng ybnouyy suonoesuely

G202 - ¥202 Ad ‘pund [esduan ‘|enjoy ‘sa j3abpng SOILYNOVY
1911381g Uonealsay QUNOD YMLON

s|seg Jeruaay



%9LL Sp'682'8- 00°000'0L §5'092') %9'LL SY'6EZ'8- Q000004 S5'09L'% yuswdnby weiboid/2om0
%00 00°005'¢- 00°005'e Qo0 %00 00'005'€- 00°005'e Q00 $a8U30| g suooadsu]
%00 00'000°%- 00°000'% 000 %00 00'000'%- 00°000'% 000 ujep/deaspuncs - ‘pid dweys
%l 12'998'¢- 00°008' 6C€C9 %LVl L2'go8'e- 00°005'% 6T°¢E9 sayddng [epojuer
%e’eT 9E'8EE'ET" 00°000'0€ ¥9°199'9 %L'Te 9E'QEL'EZ- 000000 ¥9'199'9 Jusey/daayspunoss - “bpig wep
%9'Ch biioe- 00°00S't 99'8¢€9 %9CTY 198 00°005°L 95'8¢€9 ddng/sjepiajen Julely
%00 00'000'6- 00'000'S 000 %00 00°000°5- 00°000's Q00 | Suopeuoq
%00 00°000'0}- 00°000'01 000 %00 00'000°0L- 0000004 000 sjueay
%y'T 00088~ Q0'000°G Q0021 %'C 00'088't- 00°000'G 00021 o8|y
SIDIAYIS 2 STVIMILYIN
%88 28'609'061- 00'7€6'LES 81'pTe' Ly %88 28'609'067- 00'¥£6'2£S 81'vZE LY SIVINYIS TINNOSYHI (210l
%69 16'GSK'EL- 006kl 80'€66 %69 ._,m.mmv,mv. - 00'6bF L 60'¢66 uojnquiuc) QYN ‘Juausaipay
%00 00'95€'G- 00'95€'S 000 %00 00'95€'G- 00'95¢'G 000 aoueinsu “duted SIBHPOM
%00 00'9€6'SP- 00'9¢6'sY 00’0 %00 00'986 /Gt 00'9€6'Sy 000 ajueinsu) yyesy
%8YE 1916222 00°L46'FE 6£'G8L'ZL %8 Ve 19'162'22- 00LL6'7E 6£'68L'ZH sasuadxd |loJAed - 0969
%8'L 0£'0,0'¢0y- 00°9LZ" 287 04°GrL'vE %8'L 0€°0.0'¢0F 00912 LEY 0L°6¥L'vE NOLLVMLSININGY letoL
%00} L9'588'Gh~ - 00'686'0S 6E€0L'S %00} 19'588'5p- 00'686'05 B8E'E0L'S Josiatadng asueusulel
%6'S 0009} ke 00'96¥'22 00'9eE'L %6'G 0009L')2" 00'96F'2C 00°9eE't Hels jejpojsnd
%00 00'8rL'6l Q0'grL'el Qo0 %00 008046k~ 00°8¥.2'6¥ [e[oXe] Jayaea] jooysg-aid
%L 0L 0G'2Q€'66- QO'EPr'e9 05'sEL'L %.4'0L 05°20€'65- 00°Ery'99 05'gel' L 4e)S Jajuag swodfam
%12 09'665'98- Q0'¥6L ‘€6 0r'859'9 %L 09'665'98- 00'761'€6 or'ese'9 Jabeuepy aaueuyy
%Ll 00°000'96~ 00°000'701 00°000'8 %LL 00°000'96" 00°000'v04 00°000'8 10323.1Q 2A1INIIX]
%l L BGCEY - 00°'9PE'0S LrThe's %Ll 6G'EEP v 00'9PE"0g WZLB'S Il 23ueuuIel
NOILVHLSININGY
SADIAYAS TINNOSHIAd
asuadxgy
%ZL 86'0rE' e~ 007LL'BLE zoees's %z} 86'0vE L E- Q0'rLL'8LE z0'eeB'e jyoid sS04
%2T L 86'0rE'PIE- 00'viL'ele zoces'e %L 86'0VE VI E" 00'FLL'8LE z0ees'e [woay| ejoL
%Z'L 86'0VE'PLE- 00PLL'8LE T0'eEs'e %2’ 86'0rE'rLE- 00'vL Fﬂvm 20ce8'e JWOONI .ol
%Y'66 86°9L- 00000°¢ 20'€86'2 %¥'66 8691 00°000'€ 20'€86'2 awoou] asin
%00 00'005°9- 000059 Qo0 %00 00'005'9- 00'005'9 000 jsaaui [ejor
%00 00°006'9- 00°005'9 olo.o %00 00°005'g- 00°005'9 000 pund jelsusn
JsaJ9ajy]
%Q'0 00'000'G- 00°000'S 000 %00 00°000'G- 00'000's 000 suopeuoq
%SG 00°625'v1- 00°GLE'SL 00058 %SG 00'625'¥1- 00'6.€'5) 00058 |ejuay aoedg pajeaipag |ejoL
%00 00'6.8'e- 00°6.€'e 000 %00 00'628'€- 00'628'e 000 1ejuay [ooydasaid
%L'L Q0051 LI~ 00'000'¢H 00’058 %L 00°0GL'LL- 00°000'ZL 00058 S|EJUSY WOOY Jajuay APUNUILIS)
lejuay wumnm pajeadipag
%00 00'662'8~ 00662 '8k Q00 %00 00°'662'8~ 00'66Z'8k Q00 Y Jaloeal |ooy d
%00 00°000'0Z- 00°000'0vZ ao0 %00 00°000'0¥2- 00'000'0¥2 000 sdiysiejoyog pue sjuels [ejoL
%00 00°000°0p2- Q0°000'0ve [oloXe] %00 o 00°000'0v2- 000000V 000 PajoLIsay |ejol
%00 00°000'0v2" oo.ooo.ovlm 000 %00 00'000'0v2- 00°000'0¥2 00’0 sjuern
POIOLISIN
sdiysIe[oysg pue sjuels
FWODNI
awodu]
asuadxz/peuwosw Aeuipao
. Bpng Jo % Bpng J19A0 § 196png sz Inf ) 186png 10 % Bpng 1940 § 6 sz|nr
viol uonelisjujwpy

aeof 1o6pnq Jo %ee 8 - §20Z ‘1. AInr ybnouy) suonoesuesy siseg [erusay

S202-v20Z Ad ‘pund [esauag ‘|enjoy "sA jJ26png NINAY
191381 UoNedIDaY AJUNOY) YLON

3S



%9Vl SS°opp'eLe 00°09b'2¢- SP'610'v9- %9'vL s5'ovb'ele 00°09%° LS~ SY'6L0'Y9

awod| 19N
%YL SSOPY'ELE  oo09vLer St6L0've %Okl SGOrb'eLE 00°09Y'LEt- SEBLOYY swoou| AJeuIpIO 19N
%0'6 £6°182'/89 00'b£9'65. 1472599 %0'6 £5°18.'189 00'¥€9'652 L¥'258'49 asuadx3 |ejoL
%b'6 LLLLL 6L 00°002'212 62'825'02 %P6 LUV 6L 00004242 62'825'02 SIDIANIS 2 STVINILYN 8101
%S 0L 17652'92- 0000662 650VL'E %G 0L i L¥B5L'92- 00'006'62 65°07L'E SaIINN Iejol
%0°0 Q0°005" 00°005 000 %00 00°005- 00°00§ 000 auedoud
%0'L £5Pop'e- 00006'¢ 7'se %0'L £6'vor'e- 00°006'€ praes Jarepm
%6'9L TTGLPOL- 00009'Z4 8LYZL'Z %694 TTSLY'OL- 00°009°ZH 8Lv2L'Z auoydsusau
%2 ¥T 00°686° 00Q0¢'} 00'glE %Z YT 00'686° 00°00€'+ 005k Jamag
%00 00°000'e- 00°000'S Q00 %00 00'000'¢- 00°000'¢ 000 abeqien
%L 99'pee's- 00°000'6 pe'599 %L 9OpEL's- 00'000'6 vE'G99 fpPoa
Si
%S Ve 19'6£0'F- 00°00F'S 6£0Z8'} %S ¥T L9607 00°00%'s 6£0Z"t sabaey) yueg
%00 00005}~ 00°006'} 000 %00 00°008'L- 00°005'} 000 abeayi/Buibpouonepodsuel ]
%L L 00616~ 000005 00'8 %L'L 00°GL6 Y- 00°000°'G oo'se suopeayiuad/bujues)
%G LLBL'op 00°000'6% 62208'C %HL'G L2°261'0% 00°000'6 62708'C SBIIAIRS [BUO|SSDI0Id
%00 00°006'6€~ 00°006'6€ 000 %00 00°006'6E" 00'006'6€ 000 aoueansu| fjensed pue Apadold
%8BT 00'084'2- 000052 00028 %8Th 00°08L'Z- 000052 0002 owoldfy AUNd/SPY
%L'LZ 20'%56'L- 00°000°}) 86'GF0'E %L LT 20v56'L 00°000'4} 86°610'c sa|iddng jejoL
%L'LE 201862 ) 00'000°k} 86°S70'E %.LT 20'VS6' 2 00'000'LL 86'GY0'E sallddng wesBboid/2a140
sa||ddng
196png Jo % Bpng JorQ § 3obpng szinp 6png Jo % 336png 1910 § 3eBpng sz Inr
avioL uojjensjujpy
1e3k jabpnq Jo %c¢ 8 - 520Z ‘L€ Ainr ybnoay) suonoesues) siseg [eniaay

§202-¥20Z Ad ‘pPund jessuag ‘lenjoy "sA 3ebpng NINQY
19131 UoEII9Y AHJUNOY YLION



%00

00°000'2-

000002 000 %00 00°000'2- 000002 000
%00 00°000'z- 00000'Z 000 %0°0 00000z 000002 000
%162 80°08Y'z- 00°005'¢ T6'610') %16 80°084'2- 00°005'e Z6'6L0°)
%9'0Z Zy'ege'z- 00°000'c 85°919 %90C Trese'T 00°000°¢ 85'9L9
%00 00°000°0}- 00°000°0L 000 %00 00°000'0}- 00'000°0} 000
%89 81°L2r'9TT- 00°€66'ZC zg'69s'ol %89 81 /ev'9Te- 00'£66'27Z 2969591
%00 00'626'C 00'526'C 000 %00 - 00°626'2- 00'626'2 Q00
%00 00°¥BY'LL- 00'v8Y'LL 000 %00 00°v8r'LL- oover'LL 000
%bL 9L 29'GL- 00'Ze6'9k [CperA %L oL'pI9'GL- 00°ZE6'9L ¥8'/6T'L
%TL Z0°PPE'gBL- 00'T69'HE 86'208'G) %L Z0'rYe'96L- 00°Zs9'LLZ 86°20€'S}
%ZG 8E'ZL8' Y- 00'6EE' LY z990r'T %G 8£°2.8'v 00'65€'Ly z9'90r'z
%L'8 £6°20'c9- 00'622'69 17°120°9 %L £6°204'C9 00'6.L'69 17'120'9
%L 08'L8'cz- 00'602'6Z 07'2€8'L %L 08'1/8'SC 00'602'5Z 0T 88}
%L'8 [N 00'652'09 92°088'% %hg A A 00°652'09 92°088'%
%90 20815'8" 00'0.5'8 £6°lS %90 L0°815°8- 000458 €615
%8L 00298 2P} 00°'Er8'654 00'L8r'Z) %8, 00°29E L} 00'€r8'651 00'Ler'zh
%8L 00'29¢' 21~ 00°€P8'6SH 00'L8Y'ZL %g'L 00°C9E' Ly 00°ErB'65H 00'L8r'ZY
%8'L 00°Z9E'LbL- 00°€¥8'651 00°L8¥'T) %g'L 00'Z9¢' L L- 00°€r8'6SH 00'L8v'El
%00 00°080'0}- 00°080'0} 000 %00 00°080'01- 00°080°04 000
%00 oo'eol'r- 00'€9l'y 000 %00 00°€9L'v 00°€9L'Y 000
%00 00'€9L'Y- 00'€oL'y 000 %00 00°€al'y- 00'€oL'y 000
%00 00'€9L v~ 00'€9l'y 000 %00 00°€9L'- 00'E9l 'y 000
%00 00°000'0)- 00°000'0L 000 %00 00°000°0L- 000000+ 000
%00 00°000°0L- 00°000'0} 000 %00 00°000°0}- 000000+ 000
%00 00°000'6- 00°000°'G 000 %00 00°000's- 000006 000
%00 00°000'G- 00°000'S 000 %00 00°000'G- 00'000's 000
%ZT6 00'6LL'EZ)- 00'009'5EL 00'L8r'E) %T6 00'6k4'STL 00°009'SEL 00°18¥'ZL
%Z'6 00'6kL'ezL- 00°009'GEL 00'L8r'zL %Z6 00°6LL'EZ)- 00009'sE} 00'L8¥'zh
%86 00°6LL'GLL- 00°009'/2) 00'L87'2L %86 00'64L'GLL- 0000922} Q0'k8r'zZL
%00 00°000'8- 00°000'8 000 %00 00°000'8" 00°000'8 000
6png Jo % 196png 1oAQ $ Bpng szinr 196png Jo % 13bpng J9A0 ¢ 6 sz Inf
VL0l sgauy|4

suojeoy|pan/bujuiel |
sa)ddng
juawdinbgy

saiedayuawdinb3 asueuajuiey
Buisjeapuny juaag ssaujl4
SIAVINYTS ¢ STVIRIILVIN

S3JIAY3S TANNOSHI [ejoL

uojINgUIu0Y QUON JuLWaIEY
aosueansuy yjeay

sosuadx3 l10iAed - 0959
SSANLIA e10L

J0)onasuj ssaulld
Juepuany ssaulld
sos|asadng ssaugid
Jopal|q ssauj)g
1oulei] [euossad
SSIANLIH
SIJIAYIS TANNOSHIAd

asuadx3
110id §8049

awoou) jejo L

IWOINI IBjoL
oequo) 9odl
sdyjsie|oydg pue sjueso el
PaRIsIy |ejol

sdjyssejoyas
pajLysay
sdpysiejoyssg pue sjeis

awoau] Bujsiespund [ejoL
PpajoHIsasun [ejoL

8Josuodg - Bujsjespung Juaag
sjuedijued -Buisiespung juaag
pajoujsauf
awoou| Huisiespuny

sobieyn pue saad Jesn |ejoL
$994 498(] SS3UYIS |RIOL

13Y)0 - s904 Jasn ssaulld
Bujuies| [euosiag ssaupd
saa 49 ssound
sabaey pue saed Jasn

JINODNI

awoou]
asuadxg/awoou) KeupiQ

1eaf 106pnq Jo %ge 8S - §Z0Z ‘LE “uer ybnoay} suopsesues|

G20Z - ¥20Z Ad ‘pund |elduds ‘jenjoy 'sA jobpng SSINLIA

J013SIc Uoneassay QHuUNon YLON

siseg [enoay

AR



%0'9 Zv'L0v'Z01 00586201~ 85°L.5'9" %0'9 v L0vTo0) 00°986°301- 89°L5'9"
%09 ¥ L0V'201 00°586'801- 852460 %09 Zv'20p'Z04 00'686'801- 86'L45's
%12 T zvreaLeve- 00°928'89¢ 86'850'61 %L Tv'69L 6ve- 00'828'892 85'850'6}
%9'6 vZTre'se- 00'6£8'52 9.°Z6Y'T %96 vZ'ere'ez 00'Ge8'ST 9/,267'T
%0°9L [Xad 00'GEE'S 92'958 %09} vL8LY'Y 00'GEE'S 97958
%b'ZZ 667122 00'658'2 100¥9 a %b'TT 86'rLT'T 005582 L0V
%L'8 §L€92's 00°08t'Z sz9Le %L'8 §1'€92'2Z Q0'08r'z szoLz
Bpng 0 %  jebpng 1aA0 6 sz Inf 136png o % 6png 1aA0 § 6png sz inr
Y10l ssaujl4

awoduf 19N
awoauj Areujpsp 19N
asuadx3 jejo),
S$30IAY3S 3 STVIRIILVA IEI0L
sapnn 1eoL

auoydaawau|
Anopyoe|3
saplnn

1eak 3aBpnq Jo %e¢ 8 - 5Z0Z ‘1S "uer ybnody) suonsesues)

SZ0Z - ¥202 Ad ‘pung [esaudn ‘|enjdy “sA Jobpng SSIANLIH
J913SIg UOIea129Y AJUnNo) YLON

sised [emdoy

2§



%0°¢-

22'506°6h 00°9Y¥8p- (44310 %0°¢" 22°506'61 00°'9¥1'8t- 2T65HL
%0 ZT'506'6Y 00'9¥p '8~ TTBGK'L %0E- TZ'G06'8Y 00'gri'8y- ZT65%'L
%LT TEELGEEL- 00'96€'9E} 80'288'C %LT ZEELG'EE)- 00'96€'9¢} 80'288'C
%0’} ZT10e'rE" 00'662'66 8.'166 %Q'L 2T L0E'rE" 00'662'56 8.466
%56 22'052's 00'66.'S 8L'8YS %56 Tz ose's- 00'662'S 8L8YS
%00 00°GL0'L- 00°610'L 000 %0°0 00°GL0'L- 00°GLO'L 000
%181 0L'Zz0'L- 00'8r2'L 06'52Z %18l 0L'220'L- 00'8re'L 06'522
%9'12 00'9ze- 00'oLY 0008 %9'LZ 00928~ Q0'9Ly 0006
%G'L zl'88'e QozL'e 88'2ET %G'L z188'T 00°0Z+'e 88'ZeT
%00 000054~ 00005t 000 %0°0 00'005°L- 00°005°} 00'0
%00 00°000+~ 000007 000 %0°0 00°000'%- 00°000'7 000
%0'6 00'1SS ¥ 00'000'S 00'6YP %0'6 00'LSG' 00'000'G 00'67p
%0°0 00°000'22- 00'000'22 000 %0'0 00°000'22- 00'000'2Z 000
%00 00°000'46- 00°000'25 000 %00 00°000'£G- 00°000'25 000
%9'p [T A%A 00°260't¥ oeres'L %9y [VAAYA 00°260'}t 0E'v88'L
%9'v 04'628'2 00'296'C 0£'9EL %9V 0,'628'T- 00'296'2 0g'9El
%9y 00'£8¢'9¢- 00'SE}'BE 00'8pL't %9y 00°28¢'9€~ 00'6El'8E 00'87L'L
%00 00045'8- 000258 000 %0'0 00'045'8" 000.6'8 000
%6'G 00°'218'22- 00695 '6C 008yl %8S Q021822 00'695'62 00'8rL'L
%6y 02'809'¢8- 00'056'/8 0£'LPE'Y %6y 0£'809'¢8- 00°056°£8 0E'LYE'Y
%B'F 04£'809'¢8- 00°056'28 0e'LYEY %B'Y 04'809'€8- 00'056'28 0g'LYE'Y
%6y 04'809'¢8- 00°056'28 0g'LYE'Y %6'F 0£'809'€8" 00'056'28 0e'Lye'y
%0°0 00062~ 00052 000 %0'0 000524~ 00'052 000
%00 00°000'p~ 00°000'% 000 %0°0 00°000'%- 00'000't 000
%00 00°002'2- 00'002'Z 000 %00 00'002'2" 00°002'C 000
%00 00°002'2- 000022 000 %00 00002'2 00002'C 000
%0°0 0000046~ 0000025 000 %00 00°000'£6- 00°000'28 000
%0'0 00°000'L5" 00'000'25 000 %00 0000025 00°000'2L5 000
%00 00°000'£5- 00°000'28 000 %00 00°000'£G- 00°000'26 000
%L'LE 0/°859'}L- 00°000'9} 0E'LrE'Y %142 04°859'}}- 00°000'0k 0g'LYE'Y
%00 00000'8- 00'000'8 000 %0°0 00°000'8- 000008 000
136png jo % 32bpng Jon0 § 6png szint 196pna Jo % 26png Jan0 § 6 sz Inf
vioL 19)us) sUY Bujuuopad

awoaul JoN
awoouj Areu|piO 19N
asuadxg |ejol
S3DIAYIS 2 STIVIMILVIN IejOL
sapnn lejol

A3

auoydnaauiajy]

Jamag

Aomoea
sapinn

owoid Md, 1d/spy

Buispeapy

juawidinbg
$994 ISIMY
sjuBID)
SAJNAUIS 2 STVIRIALYIN

SIAJIAYIS TANNOSYHA Iei0o),
sasuadxg |jolAed - 0959
YILNID SLYV ONINGOSY3d 11301

Sjue3s|ssy Ovd
Jojeu|piood ovd
YILNID SLUV ONINYOJu3ad
S3DIAYIAS TANNOSHID
asuadxg

1J0.d S8019
awoou| [ejoL
INOINI IBJOL
suopeuog
dyssosuods usag
{ejusy aoeds pajes|paq |eyoL

S[eIUIY WOoY JIYUD AJunwiwo)
|ejuay aoedg pajesipag

sdjysiejoyss pue sjuels [ejo)
pajopisay jejoL

sjuess
PajImIsay
sdiysiejoyag pue syuesn
s19he|d pUSQIBALY
sajes 1211
3WOONI
awosu|
asuadxz/ewosu) Aeuipio

1eah 3abpnq Jo %¢e 8 - SZ0Z ‘1€ Ainr ybnoay suonjoesuesy
G202-v20Z Ad ‘Pund [esauas ‘lenjoy ‘sA Jobpng ovd

JoL3SIg Uojjesalsosy QLunon YUON

siseg [0y



%00 00°002'}- 0000Z'} 000 %0°0 00°002'1- 00°00Z'L 000
%Ly 96 ver'el- 00'000'vL ¥0'G.S %L'p 96'vZy'Ch- 00°000'7L vQ'GLS
%L 4L ¥8°'€00'8" 00°000'6 91°966 %bLL $8'€00'8- 00°000'6 91'966
%0 10°286'2- 00'000°¢ 667CL %0 10'286'C 00°000'¢ 86°Zh
%P9l £8'910'G- 000009 £1'€86 %¥'9L £8'910'G- 00°'000'9 21°€86
%00 00°005°2- 000082 000 %00 00°005'2- 000092 000
%0°0 QD'000'}- 00'000'L 000 %00 00°000'L- 00°000'L 000
%yBLL 2216 00°000's 2TLLE'S %v'6LL LB 00°000's TTHLB'S
%8'6 L1'9p5°0ZL- 00'009'€EL £8'€50'¢) %8'6 L1'9¥8'0Ts- 00°009'cEL £8°€50'El
%0°€ GRELB'T 000062 5198 %0'€ SELB'T 00°006'Z 5L'98
%0'0 00'¥8Y" b1~ 00'v8P'LL 000 %00 0078y LI~ 00¥8Y 1L 000
%L 69'Lp8'2- 00'1£8'8 LE'€86 %L 698 L 0018’8 LE£'€86
%60k £9°00F'86- 00°'68E'0LL LEV8B'LL %6°0L £9°00¥'86" 00'68£'0LL L8'788'LL
%0'0 006827~ 00'682'% 000 %00 00°G8Z' 7~ 00582’ 000
%99l 06'289'8¢- 0009¢ 'S 01'249'2 %9'9h 06'289'8¢" 00°09€'9F 04'429'2
%Z 'L £L°2Ep'SG- 00°0p.'65 12208y %TL €L'Ter'sS- 00'0v2'6s 1T L08'Y
%bvh 0b'861'96 00'L29'CLL 0922194 %brL 0b'867'96" 00'LL9'CLL 09ZLL'9L
%yl Ot 86v'96 00°LL9°2L) 092219l %l vL OF'867'96 00'L9'TLL 092’9k
Y%¥ vl op'86Y'96- 00'b29'CLL 09'2LL'9) %'rL Ob'861'96" 00'L49'Ch) 092LL'9L
%0'0 00°000's- 00°000'¢ 000 %00 00'000'G- 00'000's 000
%6'€E 00 kLG L) 00°L15'02 00°000'6 %6'EE 00°LLG'LL- 00'L15'92 00'000'6
%6'EE 00'LLG L1 00'L15'9T 00°000'6 %6 €€ 00'LLG'LL- 00'H15'92 00'000'6
%00 00'LLG b b~ 00'LL5 1L 000 %0°0 00 LS bi- 00LLS'LL 000
%009 00000'9 00'000'G} 000006 %0'09 00°000°9- 00'000'64 00°000°'6
%8'8 oF /86'cL- 0009418 9'zLL'L %8'8 Ob'/86'¢L- 0009118 09ZLL'L
%00 00°096'L 000962 000 %00 00'096'2" 00'096'Z 000
%00 00002 bb- 00°002'} L 000 %00 00°002'bL- 00°002'L 1 000
%2 b oF'£2€'vs- 00'005°19 09'eLLL %LLb OF £Z€'v5" 00'005'L9 09'2LL'L
1ebpng Jo % 3abpng Jar0 § ¥bpng sznr 16pNgI0%  19bpngJanQ§ 1ebipng gz Inr

1oL

WnoA

—,

suopes|yuag/bujuresy
sdoysspopm pue sdwed
sajddng |ejol

soljddng spodg
s3)jddng welboidRiw0
sajddng

wawdinbgy
suojjeuoq
sjueIny
SIDINUTS B STVIUILYIA

SADJIAUIAS TINNOSHAJ 18101

uojngEIu0D GUON ‘uawalpay
aosueInsu] YyjeaH

sasuadx3 ([0ihed - 0959

HLNOA lejol

sjue)sissy spods INoA
sjuejs|ssy wesbosd YyInoA
1032241q wesboud yinop
HLNOA
S3JIAYIS TAINNOSHIAD
asuadx3y

o4d SS019
2woau| je)oL
JWOONI lejol
suopeuoqg
sdiyssejoysg pue sjuess [ejol
PajoU3say jejol

sdiyssejoyoss
sjuel
PajpHIsay
sdiysaejoysg pue sjuels

sabueyo pue saag Jasn |ejoL

sdwen yjnop
spodg Yinop
weibold YynoA
sabuey pue ssad Jasn
JNOONI
awosu|
asuadx3ajewoau| ueupIO

1eak Jabpnq yo %288 - §20Z ‘L€ AInr ybBnoayy suonsesues]

SZ0Z - ¥20Z Ad ‘pung [eiauay ‘|en)oy "sA 3obpng HINOA
1911381 UoeaIay AHUNo0H YLON

s|seg [enady



%9'8 18'216°eS 00°'586°85- 61°2L0'" %9'8 18°216°CS 0053685~ 6L2L0°G"

%98 LB'EL6'ES 00'686'8G" 6L2.0'6 %9'8 1871658 00'686'85- 8L'TL0'G-

%y'zh L2 LLY0G L 00'959'L2} 6LprZ'\Z %b'Zh L2 LLY'0GL- 00'959'LL4 6LVVENE

%51 0°'598'62- 00'950'8€ 960649 %5'LE v0Ge8'62- 00'950'8€ 96061'8

%LZL ¥ L0L'Y- 00'96€'S ¥5'8Y9 %1L'Th o' LOL'Y- 00'95€'G vSav9

%G'LL 146€0'C- 00°2L¥'T 6Z'Zey %521 LL6E0'T- 002Lr'T 6Z'zey
%G'L 6199'C 00+88'2 s2'9LZ %G, SL199'T 00'v88'C sz'ole

___¥ebpng o jebpng Joap § yobpng sz Inr 126png 30 % 196png JaAQ § 1ebpng sz e

IVLIOL WNoA

awodu] 39N
awoau] AeupO 19N
asuadx3z |ejo)
S$IDNAY3S B STVIHILYW eIoL
sapiun lejoL

auoydatua)
Ayomoeig
sanIBN

teak 386pnq 40 %¢¢°8 - $Z0Z ‘L€ AInr ybnoay suonsesues)
G20Z - ¥20Z Ad ‘Pund jeiduan ‘lenjoy "sA jabpng HLNOA

Jo13ISIg uUoneal12ay AHUNos YuoN

sised |entddy



%20 €1°989'66¢‘}- 00'6.5'60t'L 18'T68°6 %L'0 €1'989°66€‘}- 00°625'60%'1 18'268'6
%L0 £1°989'66¢" 1 00°6.5'60¢'L 18°T68'6 %L0 £1'989'66€°L- 00'625'60%'L 18'268'6
%00 00°00K'10€- 00°00%'L0E 000 %00 00°00%'10E- 00°00%'1.0¢ 000
%00 00°000'02" 00°000'02 000 %00 00°000°02- 00°000'02 000
%00 00°00%"'182- 00007182 000 %00 00°00F' 182" 00°00%'182 000
%00 00°002'06- 00°00£'05 000 %00 00°004'05- 00002'0% 000
%00 00°002°05~ 00°002'08 000 %00 00°00.'05~ 00°002'08 Q00
%00 00°000'08}- 0000008} Q00 %00 00°000°08L- 00°000'081 000
%90 £1°980'L04'L- 00'626'0L2°} 192686 %90 £1°980'102'L- 00°628'0L2"L 18'268'6
%90 £1°980'104'}- 00'626'04L°) 18'268'6 %90 £1°980'10L°}L 00626042} 18268'6
%90 £1°980'40L'L" 00'6L6'04L°L 18'268'6 %90 €1°980'L02"}- 00'626'0LL'L 18'768'6
%90 z£'969'9vT 1 00'LOE'YST' b 89°%09'L %90 ZE'969'PT L~ 00°LOE'¥SZ') 89709'L
%0°L |8°192'08- 0006526 61882 %0°L 18°192'08" 00°066°2E 61'882°C
%00 00'8ZL'¥2t- 00'get vy Q00 %00 a0°8zL vTr- 00821 ¥Zr 000
%00 00'82)'ver- 00'8TL b2y 000 %0°0 [slk:rAR 24 00°8CL'vZY 000
Bpng Jo % Bpng 42A0 § B sz inr 396png J0 % fpng 490 § 12png sz Inf
TvioL

Pa)ed0]|y-UoN

awoou| 1N
awoau| LeujpaQ 12N
asuadxz [ejoL
SIIONIONILNOD
A2IANAS 1830 190l

*33( - 3s343)u] uonebliqo g4
aung - 3sasaju) uoyebliqo 9944
unp - jedjaupid uopebiiqo 944
JO0IAN3S 18930
asuadxg

10.d 58049
awloouy [ejoL
JWOONI [e3ol

{1eaf yuauna) saxe]
(po|aa) Aisnojaald) saxe)

aouejeg pung Hujuuibag (ejol

pajoHisalun - OMN
aouejeg pung bujuuibag
JWOINI
|woouy|
asuadxzjewoou) euipio

1eaf JabBpnq Jo %88 - §20Z ‘LE AIne ybBnoayy suonsesues)

GZ0Z - ¥20Z A4 ‘pund [eJauds ‘|enjoy “sA 3obpng 90TTv-NON
3913810 UonRaI9Y AJUNO YLON

siseg [enisoy



%00 00'691 ‘394" 00691891 000 %0°0 00°691°99}- 00691891 000
%00 00°69L'891- 00691891 000 %0°0 00'694'89L" 00'694'891 000
%00 00°009'992- 00°009'992 000 %00 00°009'992- 00°009'992 000
%00 00°009'95 L~ 00009'851 000 %00 00009951~ 00°009'9G1 000
%00 00°009'951- 00°009'9G} 000 o %00 00°009'9G}- 00°009'95L 000
%00 00°000'0L - 00000041 009 %00 000000k L- 00°000'04 L 000
%00 00°000'0bL- 00000041 000 %00 00°000'014L- 00000041 000
%0'0 00°000°00%~ 00°000'00% 000 %00 00°000'00}- 00°000°00) Q00
%00 00°000°01~ 0000004 000 %00 00'000'01- 0000004 000
%00 00'69L VEr 00'69L'vEY 000 %00 00'69. Vet~ 00'69L'vEY 000
%00 00°69L'PEY- 00°69.'vEY 000 %00 00'69L'vEY- 00'692 el 000
%0°0 00°69L'vEY- 00'69L'VEp 000 %00 00°69L PEY- 00'69.'vEY 000
%00 00'6LZ'69¢- 00'61.2'69 00°Q - %00 00'61Z'69E" 0064269 000
%0°0 00055'59" 00'055'59 000 %0'0 00°065'G9" 00°055'69 000
%00 00°055'69~ 00°055'69 000 %00 00055'59- 00°055'59 000
6png 40 % Bpng 4eA0 ¢ B Sz In ) 6png jo % 336png 4940 § 1ebpng sz Inr
TLOL

pung ansasay sjassy |epded

awoau| }aN
awoou) AleuspaQ 32N
asuadx3 [ejoL
sJagsuel] [eyol

13)u39 spenby o) Jagsuea]
su9jsueIL

AVILNO TVLIdVD oL
Juawancsdwy g uoisuedxy fepdes jejo L

d10 s)aafoid aimng [euopippy
juawdinb3 Jajuay ssaupd
1dw) ' uojsuedx3 jepded
AVILNO 1VLIdYD
asuadx3y

J30id Ss0I9
awedy| [ejo L
JWOONI 180l
INUIAIY JOqrUIL JBIS
piesuod asueleg pung jepdes jejoL

"SJA JOld woay _Mu_nﬂo U_.__vf_og
plemiod asuejeq pung jepdes
AWOINI
awodu|
asuadx3z/ewoaul AeupiQ

1eak 3oBpnq o %£¢'8 - §20Z ‘1€ AN ybnoay) suondesues|

§Z02Z-¥20Z Ad ‘Pund aA19s9y Jassy |ended ‘lenjoy “sA 1abpng

121381 uoneasday AJUNon YUON

s|seg [eniooy



%0001 89°089°0¥1 00'0 89°089°0p1 %0001 89°089°0¥1 00'0 £9°089°0¥1 awoly] 313N
%Q'00L 89'089'0FL 000 89'089'0V1 %0001 89'089'0V | 000 89°089'0¥ 1 awoou] Aleulpio 12N
%0'CT 09082 LI€- 00°009'90Y O'61€'68 %0°CT 09°082°LbE- 00'009'90% Ov'6LE'68 asuadx3 jejo)
%0001 TL'98F'0L 000 2.'98v'0L 2.'98¥'0L SIJNAYIS 2 STVINILVYI 1230L
%0001 TL98p'0L 00’0 ZL'987'0L cLo8r'ol SIPUAN lejoL
%0°00} 99'TLL'E 000 99ZLL'B 99'zLL'S auedosd
%0°001 90'pLE'L 000 90VLE')L 90'PLE' L LHEINECIE]
saniun
SADNAYIS ® STVIYILVAN
%00 00°009'90p- 00°009'90¥ Qoo %00 00°009'00F 0000980 aoo JJIAYIS 1630 1ej0L
%00 00°00¢€'zZhe- 00°00€'ZLE 000 %00 00'00€'Tle- 0000€'ZL2 000 Aed puog uonebiiqo 09
%00 00°00€'v61- 00°00¢'¥61 000 %00 Q0'00E'v61- 00°00€'¥61 000 20|AJI2S JgoQq ueo 9944
JDIAY3S 1930
%0001 89'2€8'8L o000 89'2€8'8L %0001 89'2€8'8. 000 89'7€8'8L AYILNO IVLIdVYD 1ej0oL
%0°00L hadvelt 000 v o9L . ¥P'agl juswiaroadw) g uojsuedx3 Jejdeg jejo)
%0°001 P09l o000 rr'091L pr’0St wajsAg wuely o414
Juawaaosdwy ¢ uojsuedx3 jeyden
%000} vZ'eLo'ss 000 ¥2'cL9'8L %0001 ¥Z'2.9'8L Q00 ¥2'C29'8L lood JeN“uomays'Bulping Z21
AV1LNO TYlidvD
asuadxg
%995 26'665'9LL- 00'009°90F 80'000'0£ %998 Z6'66G'9LL" 00°009'90F 80°000'0€C Jyoid sS0ID
%9'9S 26'665'8LL- 00'009'90% 80°000'0€2 %9'9% - 26'665'92L- 00°009'90F 80°'000'0€T awooay| jejoL
%00 00'009'951- 00°009'954+ 000 %00 00'009'9GL- 00°009'96 | Q00 3 491430 woy i1 [eyoL
%00 00°009'9G1- 00°009'951 Q00 %00 00°009'9G1L- 00°009'951 000 pungy aAJasay |ejdes woay
JaYy3o wosy L
%Q'T6 26'666'61- 00'000'052 20'000'0€2 %0'C6 76'666'61" 00°000'05Z £0°000'0€2 JNOONI 1e1oL
%00 00°000'052- 00°000°052 Qo0 %00 00°000'052- 00°000°062 ooa plemiog aduejeg pung pajaysay
%0°00L 800 000 80°0 %0001 80D 000 800 Jsalopu| |ejor
%000k 800 000 800 %0001 800 000 800 jsalaju] pund j0od MaN
jsasau|
%0°001 00'000'0€T 000 00'000'0€Z 00°000'0€2 suopeuoq [ejoL
%0°00L 00°000'0€2 000 00°000'082 00'000'0£2 pajousay
suoneuocg
FWOODNI
awoau}
asuadx3z/awoau] Aseuipip
196png 4o % 190png A0 § 19bpng _ gz |nr . 336png jo % Bpng sen0§ 126png szine
101 pung ‘fosd Jajuad sopenby maN

1edA 396pnq Jo %E¢'8 -5202 ‘L€ AIne ybnoay) suonsesues)

§202-20Z Ad ‘puny ‘foid 139 sonenby maN ‘jen)oay "sa j1obpng
1914381 UoRESIITY AUNoH YUON

s|seg [enIooy



North County
Recreation District

Soft Opening Plan - New Pool Facility

Introduction

The soft opening of NCRD’s new pool facility will mark a significant milestone for our community. While the grand
opening is planned for a later date, once the donor recognition wall and remaining details are complete, the soft
opening allows us to begin serving patrons immediately and transition operations from the old facility.

Operations Plan

Pool operations will expand to full-day hours with no mid-day downtime. A finalized pool schedule will be
implemented to guide programming, lane use, and recreational swimming times. Staff coverage will be adjusted to
ensure consistent and reliable service across all operational hours.

Staff & Manager Involvement

Managers will be present at opening each day to welcome patrons and oversee the start of operations. Additional
manager’s presence will be scheduled at key times during the day to monitor the building, assist staff, and
address patron needs. Front-line staff, including lifeguards and front desk attendants, will provide a high-touch
welcome, orienting patrons to the facility and ensuring smooth operations.

Patron Experience

Patrons will be greeted upon arrival and provided with a brief orientation to the new facility, including locker
rooms, entrances/exits, and new pool features. Staff will emphasize safety, clear communication, and hospitality
to ensure patrons feel comfortable and celebrated during their first visits.

Communication Strategy

A public announcement will be made to notify the community of the soft opening. This communication will
highlight that the facility is now operational, while making it clear that this is not the grand opening event.
Messaging will be shared through staff, board members, Facebook, and the Farmers Market— our strongest
current community outreach points. Longer-term improvements to communication channels are in development
but will take time and resources.

Monitoring and Feedback

Managers will collect feedback to document patron experience, operational issues, and staff observations. This
information will be reviewed regularly to make adjustments and improvements in real time. The feedback will also
inform the planning of the grand opening celebration and ongoing operational improvements.

Timeline
e Soft Opening Launch Date: TBD
e Full Pool Schedule Begins: TBD

e Grand Opening: Create committee to plan Grand Opening following the completion of the donor
recognition wall and final preparations.

49

POBox207 | 361559% St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

Main Pool Winter Schedule

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

6am

Zam Lap Swim Lap Swim Lap Swim
Lap Swim Lap Swim
8am LapSwim / LapSwim / Lap Swim  /
AM Fitness AM Fitness AM Fitness
9am
Lap Swim Aqua Yoga Lap Swim

10am

Lap Swim / Swim Safe Lap Swim / Swim Safe | Lap Swim /

11lam Water Walk Program Water Walk Program Water Walk
12pm Lap Swim
Lap Swim Lap Swim Lap Swim
1pm
Lap Swim
Swim Safe Swim Safe Swim Safe Open Swim
2pm Program Program Program P
Lap Swim
3pm
. Lap Swim / . Lap Swim / .
4pm Lapgg™ Water Walk Lap Swim Water Walk Lap Swim

Lap Swim/ Lap Swim /
Water Water

Family Swim Walking Family Swim Walking
Lap Swim Family Swim

5pm

6pm
Lap Swim

7pm

8pm

9pm

LL6)

POBox207 | 361559%5St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County

Recreation District

6pm

Therapy Pool Winter Schedule

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
6am
lefter Water Wellness WW?ter
—am ellness Water Hour Water ellness
Hour Wellness Wellness Hour
Hour Hour
8am
AM Fit AM Fit AM Fit
9am ; .
Adaptlve Parent Tot Aqua Yoga Parent Tot Adaptlve
Swim Swim
10am
Water Swim Safe i Swim Safe Water
11am Walking Program | ‘vaterwalking | o am Walking
Lap Swim
12pm Adaptive Self-guided - . Self-guided Adaptive
= - . Adaptive Swim . ;
Swim Swim Swim Swim
1pm
Quiet Swim Safe Swim Safe Swim Safe Quiet Open Swim
2pm Waters Program Program Program Waters P
3pm
Water Self-guided . Self-guided Water .
4pm Walking Swim WaterWalking | g im Walking | -2PSwim

5pm

Self-guided
Swim

7pm

8pm

9pm

Water
Walking

Self-guided
Swim

Family Swim

Water
Walking

Self-guided
Swim

Family Swim

L)

PO Box 207

36155 9" St. Nehalem, OR 97131 |

855.444.6273



( ;
r i u,«_.‘l.

North County
Recreation District

Sportsman Software Implementation Schedule

District Go-Live Date: September 2, 2025
Patron Website Launch Date: October 6, 2025
Fob Access Go-Live Date: October 6, 2025

Phase 1 -Final Preparations & Internal Training
August 12 - September 1, 2025

e August 12-16 - Finalize software setup, user permissions, and configurations.

o August 18-29 - Internal staff department-specific trainings (Welcome Center, Fitness,
Aquatics, Admin).

e August 25-29 - System testing & troubleshooting.

* August 29 - Pre-launch readiness review (final data verification, backup, and contingency
plans).

Phase 2 - Internal Launch
September 2, 2025 - District-Wide Go Live
e Staff begins using Sportsman software for all registrations, scheduling, sales, and
reporting.
¢ Ongoing staff support sessions (drop-in Q\&A twice a week through September).

Phase 3 - Public Rollout Preparation

September 8 — October 3, 2025

Marketing & communications campaign announcing upcoming patron portal & fob system.
Create and test online instructional materials (videos, step-by-step guides, FAQs).
Prepare physical signage and handouts for front desk and facilities.

Website update to add sportsman portal.

Phase 4 - Patron Training Sessions
Offer training opportunities to patrons on the new sportsman software from the user interface
side. Go over navigating the website, registering for activities, and renewing membership.
September 29 - October 3, 2025
e Monday, September 29, 2025: 9:00 AM -10:30 AM
o Tuesday, September 30, 2025: 5:30 PM -7:00 PM
October 6 - October 10, 2025
e Thursday, October 9, 2025: 1:00 PM - 2:30 PM
¢ Friday, October 10, 2025: 11:30 AM-1:00 PM

@

POBox207 | 361559 St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



L ]
=2
s

\»

Eq s
Ji!{_}\ \3\\"

North County
Recreation District

Phase 5 - Public Launch
October 6, 2025

Patron Website Live — Online registration, account management, and payments open to the
public.

Fobs Activated — Patrons can access facilities using their issued fobs.

Continue patron training sessions (see above).

Onsite support staff available for first two weeks post-launch.

Phase 6 - Post-Implementation Review

October 20 -24, 2025

March 9 -

Collect feedback from staff and patrons.

Address ongoing technical issues or adjustments.
Finalize process documentation.

Transition to normal operations.

13, 2025 (6 month follow up)

Collect feedback from staff and patrons.

Address ongoing technical issues or adjustments.

POBox 207 | 361559" St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



NCRD

North County Recreation District

NCRD

Strategic Planning Sessions - July 8th and 29th, 2025

August 13, 2025



Session 1, 7/8/2025 NCRD

North County Recreation District

Mission Statement Updates:

During the 7/8 Strategic Planning meeting, the board first discussed the existing Mission Statement and decided to

update it. Justin and Michael further edited this offline, arriving at a V3 to be proposed for board approval in the 8/28
regular board meeting.

Existing Mission Statement:

The mission of North County Recreation District is to promote the educational, recreational, social and physical well-

being of the entire north Tillamook County community by offering activities for all ages and abilities in an inviting
environment,

New versions:

V1 “To support health and well-being through educational, physical, soclal, and cultural opportunities for all ages
and abilities.”

—> from strategy meeting 7/8

V2 “To support community, health and well-being by offering educational, physical, social, and cultural
opportunities for all ages and abilities.”

—> rough pass, Michael and Justin 8/8

V3  “To support the health and well-being of our community by offering educational, physical, social, and
cultural opportunities for all ages and abilities.”

—> proposed final wording, Michael and Justin 8/8



Session 1 Summary, 7/8/2025

NCRD

Narth County Recreation District

After aligning on a proposed new mission statement, the board next began a broad “long term” and “short
term” brainstorming session. The white board from this session is summarized below:

Long Term Short Term
Clear measurement of of success (internal and |
external) Open pooll
Old Pool
Re-branding - Secure
- Re-purpoise

Reshape and formalize pickle ball relationship

Launch new programming

No deferred maintenance

Form advisory councils to get feedback
(create feedback loop!)

New facilities to expand programming

Expanded programming hours
- leverage volunteers and staff

Vibrant community connections

Consider organization efficiencies

Stable long term funding
- Sustainable
- Prolific foundation

Address talent management
- including HR

Focus on talent

- performance

- - salary

- - clarity on core competency vs outsource

Capital Improvements List
-1, 2, 3yr neers, etc.

Customer centric operations and program
excellence

Targeted fundraising [Friends, NCRD, Board]

Summer meal program

Cost Recovery Analysis

Standard of excellence for district facilities and
landscaping

Cnsistent Community Engagement

Re-purpose metal playground area

Software Implementation

Uniform pricing structure




Session 1 Summary, 7/8/2025 NCRD

North County Recreation District




Session 2, 7/29/2025 NCRD

For the start of this session, the board first created “categories” or buckets from the “long term goals” identified
in the 7/8/25 session. The short term goals were then placed into categories and further refined and detailed
out as needed for clarity and action.

, : - Programming and Communit
Financial Health Facilities 9 9 People/Talent nty
Operational Excellence Connections
_ Quantify day to day From aadvisory
Detailed cash flow 4 ! , - :
. operations AND capital _ Review organization /  councils (department
analysis Mwﬁmm RS S improvement needs (facility Membership Softwere propose efficiencies specific to get
Y health assessment) feedback)

Revenue generation to Develop robust
Open pool (and close old _ - volunteer programs  Consistent community
support cash flow 000) Uniform pricing structure (consistent across engagement

analysis/goals NCRD)

Set goals and objective

Cost recovery analysis Repurpose old pool Teen/youth programming for all employees with
formal annual reviews

Consider re-districting Expand programming hours _EUﬁ_MﬁmmwmwmmMmIm

Launch new programming

Expand swim programming

Data driven decisions

Digitize and update employee
and district policy manuals




Session 2, 7/29/2025 NCRD

North County Recreation District

After short term goals were categorized, their relative priorities were discussed. The #1 priorities for each
category are highlighted below. These will be used to both guide the district and to inform Justin's goals.

Programming and
Operational Excellence

Community

Financial Health Facilities .
Connections

People/Talent

Quantify day to day
operations AND capital
improvement needs (facility
health assessment)

From advisory
Review organization /  councils (department
propose efficiencies specific 1o get
feedback)

Develop robust
volunteer programs
(consistent across

NCRD)

Revenue generation to
support cash flow
analysis/goals

Uniform pricing structure

Set goals and objective
Cost recovery analysis Repurpose old pool Programming: for all employees with
formal annual reviews
- Teen/youth programming
- Expand programming hours
- Launch new programming

Consider re-districting

Expand swim programming

Data driven decisions

Digitize and update employee
and district policy manuals Awﬁw




Session 2, 7/29/2025 NCRD

RNorth County Recreation District




NCRD

North County Recreation District

NCRD

Strategic Planning Sessions - July 8th and 29th, 2025

August 13, 2025



Session 1, 7/8/2025 SO NCRD

North County Recreation District

During the 7/8 Strategic U_@S:_:@ meeting, the board first discussed the existing Mission Statement and decided to

update it. Justin and Michael further edited this offline, arriving at a V3 to be proposed for board approval in the 8/28
regular board meeting.

Existing Mission Statement:

The mission of North County Recreation District is to promote the educational, recreational, social and physical well-

being of the entire north Tillamook County community by offering activities for all ages and abilities in an inviting
environment,

New versions:

V1 “To support health and well-being through educational, physical, social, and cultural opportunities for all ages
and abilities.”

—> from strategy mesting 7/8

V2 "To support community, health and well-being by offering educational, physical, social, and cultural
opportunities for all ages and abilities.”

—> rough pass, Michael and Justin 8/8

V3  “To support the health and well-being of our community by offering educational, physical, social, and
cultural opportunities for all ages and abilities.”

—> proposed final wording, Michael and Justin 8/8



Session 1 Summary, 7/8/2025

NCRD

North County Recreation District

After aligning on a proposed new mission statement, the board next began a broad “long term” and “short
term” brainstorming session. The white board from this session is summarized below:

Long Term Short Term
Clear measurement of of success (internal and |
external) Open pool
Old Pool
Re-branding - Secure
- Re-purpcise

Reshape and formalize pickle ball relationship

LLaunch new programming

No deferred maintenance

Form advisory councils to get feedback
(create feedback loop!)

New facilities to expand programming

Expanded programlming hours
- leverage volunteers and staff

Vibrant community connections

Consider organization efficiencies

Stable long term funding
- Sustainable
- Prolific foundation

Address talent management
- including HR

Focus on talent

- performance

- - Salary

- - Clarity on core competency vs outsource

Capital Improvements List
-1, 2, 3yr neers, etc.

Customer centric operations and program
excellence

Targeted fundraising [Friends, NCRD, Board]

Summer meal program

Cost Recovery Analysis

Standard of excellence for district facilities and
landscaping

Cnsistent Community Engagement

Re-purpose metal playground area

Software Implementation

Uniform pricing structure




Session 1 Summary,

e

7/8/2025




Session 2, 7/29/2025 NCRD

North County Recreation District

For the start of this session, the board first created “categories” or buckets from the “long term goals” identified
in the 7/8/25 session. The short term goals were then placed into categories and further refined and detailed
out as needed for clarity and action.

: . - Programming and Communit
Financial Health Facilities 9 9 People/Talent ity
Operational Excellence Connections
, Quantify day to day From advisory
QWWMWMOW wjm mj MMM 3 operations AND capital Membershio Software Review organization /  councils (department
4 ars improvement needs (facility P propose efficiencies specific to get
Y health assessment) feedback)

Develop robust

Revenue generation to _ :
Open pool (and close old , - volunteer programs  Consistent community
support cash flow 000) Uniform pricing structure (consistent across engagement

analysis/goals NCRD)

Set goals and objective
Cost recovery analysis Repurpose old pool Teen/youth programming for all employees with
formal annual reviews

Implement basic HR

Consider re-districting Expand programming hours best practices

Launch new programming

Expand swim programming

Data driven decisions

Digitize and update employee .
and district policy manuals mv/




Session 2, 7/29/2025 NCRD

After short term goals were categorized, their relative priorities were discussed. The #1 priorities for each
category are highlighted below. These will be used to both guide the district and to inform Justin’s goals.

Community
Connections

Programming and
Operational Excellence

Financial Health Facilities People/Talent

From advisory
Review organization /  councils (department
propose efficiencies specific to get
feedback)

Quantify day to day
operations AND capital
improvement needs (facility
health assessment)

Develop robust
volunteer programs
(consistent across
NCRD)

Revenue generation to
support cash flow
analysis/goals

Uniform pricing structure

Set goals and objective

Cost recovery analysis Repurpose old pool Programming; for all employees with
formal annual reviews

- Teen/youth programming
_ e - Expand programming hours
Consider re-districting ~ Launch new programming

Expand swim programming

Data driven decisions

Digitize and update employee
and district policy manuals P.NL




Session 2, 7/29/2025 NCRD

North County Recreation District




North County
Recreation District

North County Recreation District
Marcus Runkle

36155 9th Street

Nehalem, OR 97131

August 22, 2025

North County Recreation District
Board of Directors

36155 9th Street

Nehalem, OR 97131

Dear NCRD Board,

As Finance Manager for North County Recreation District and liaison to the Friends of NCRD
Foundation, | am pleased to recommend the appointment of three highly qualified individuals to the
Foundation’s Board of Directors. Each has expressed strong commitment to advancing the mission of
NCRD and supporting the Foundation’s important role in strengthening community resources.

| reccommend the following appointments:
« Jennie Meyers, term expiring July 30, 2026
+ Kaleen Wineinger, term expiring July 30, 2027
« Ed Gallagher, term expiring July 30, 2028

Their professional backgrounds, community engagement, and dedication to NCRD’s vision will be a
tremendous asset to the Foundation. | am confident that their service will contribute to the continued

success of both organizations.
Thank you for your consideration of these appointments.
Sincerely,

rcus Runkle, SHRM-CP

Finance Manager
District Liaison to Friends of NCRD Foundation

@

POBox 207 | 361559t St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-08

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE FRIENDS OF NCRD FOUNDATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WHEREAS, the North County Recreation District (“NCRD” or “District”) benefits from a 501(c)(3)
supporting organization known as the Friends of NCRD Foundation (the “Foundation”), which assists
the District through fundraising, community engagement, and philanthropic support; and

WHEREAS, the Foundation’s effectiveness depends upon an active, diverse, and duly appointed Board
of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the NCRD Board of Directors has identified qualified individuals who are willing to serve and
to contribute their time and expertise to the Foundation;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the North County Recreation District
that the following individuals are hereby appointed to the Friends of NCRD Foundation Board of
Directors for the terms indicated:

1. Jennie Meyers — term expires July 30, 2026.
2. Kaleen Wineinger —term expires July 30, 2027.
3. Ed Gallagher — term expires July 30, 2028.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District staff is authorized and directed to provide notice of these
appointments to the Foundation and to take any administrative steps necessary to effectuate this

action.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

ADOPTED this __dayof____ , 2025, by the Board of Directors of the North County
Recreation District.

Chair, Board of Directors Secretary, Board of Directors

(5

POBox 207 | 361559%"St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESOLUTION NO. 2025- 05
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING SURPLUS PROPERTY DISPOSAL POLICY

1. Purpose
The purpose of this policy is to establish standardized procedures for the identification, declaration, and disposal

of surplus property owned by the North County Recreation District (NCRD) in accordance with ORS 279A.280 and
applicable local regulations. This policy ensures that the disposal of surplus items is conducted in a transparent,
accountable, and cost-effective manner, while maximizing value to the District and the public.

2. Definitions
o Surplus Property: Any equipment, furnishings, vehicles, or other tangible assets owned by NCRD that

are outdated, broken, underutilized, replaced by newer items, or otherwise deemed unnecessary for
District operations.

e Disposal: The process of selling, donating, recycling, or discarding surplus property in compliance with
this policy and applicable laws.

3. Policy Exclusion
This policy does not apply to surplus property with an estimated fair market value of less than $1,000. Such items

may be disposed of at the discretion of the Executive Director without requiring Board approval or adherence to
the formal surplus process outlined herein. Disposal of such items should still be conducted in a responsible and

lawful manner.

4. Identification of Surplus Property
1. Department supervisors shall periodically review equipment and assets to determine if any items are no
longer needed.

2. ltems may be considered surplus if they are:
o Non-operational and not cost-effective to repair.
o Functionally obsolete or technologically outdated.
o Underutilized and not anticipated to be needed in the future.
o Replaced by newer items performing the same function.

5. Declaration of Surplus Property
1. The Executive Director or their designee will compile a list of proposed surplus items with an estimated

value of $1,000 or more.
2. The list will be presented to the NCRD Board of Directors for formal declaration as surplus property.

3. ABoard resolution declaring items as surplus shall be adopted prior to disposal.

POBox207 | 361559t St. Nehalem, OR 97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

6. Disposal Methods
A. Primary Disposal Method - Public Surplus Auction
o NCRD will utilize www.publicsurplus.com as the official platform for the sale of surplus
equipment.
o Allsurplus items will be publicly advertised to ensure equitable access, including:
= Posting on NCRD’s official website.
= Posting on NCRD’s social media platforms.
» Publishing a public notice in the Headlight Herald.
o Al public notices and online announcements will direct interested parties to Public Surplus for
details and participation.
B. Alternative Disposal Methods
o Ifitems are not sold via Public Surplus, NCRD may:
= Donate to another governmental agency, nonprofit organization, or community program.
* Recycle in accordance with applicable environmental regulations.
= Dispose of through approved waste management services.

7. Documentation & Reporting

A. Staff will maintain records of all surplus property valued at $1,000 or more, including:

o Description of the item.

Method of disposal.
Date of disposal.
Sale price (if applicable).
Recipient (if donated).
B. The Executive Director or designee will provide surplus disposal reports to the Board of Directors as

o O O O

needed.

8. Compliance
Failure to follow the procedures outlined in this policy may result in disciplinary action and may be considered a

violation of applicable state and local laws.

9. Effective Date
ADOPTED this __ day of , 2025, by the Board of Directors of the North County

Recreation District.

Chair, Board of Directors Secretary, Board of Directors

6T

PO Box 207 | 361559t St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-06
A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN EQUIPMENT AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL

WHEREAS, the North County Recreation District (NCRD) is the legal custodian of certain equipment used in its
public facilities and programming; and

WHEREAS, the NCRD has identified several items of equipment that are outdated, broken, underutilized, or
replaced by newer equipment and are no longer necessary for district operations; and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest to declare these items surplus and authorize their disposal in accordance
with ORS 279A.280 and applicable district policies;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the North County Recreation District hereby
declares the following items to be surplus property:

Surplus Items:
1. Freemotion 7.8 Elliptical Machine - Non-operational

2. Water Rower Machine — Non-operational
3. Precor Elliptical Machine - Non-operational

Authorized Disposal Plan:
e NCRD shall utilize www.publicsurplus.com as the official platform for all surplus equipment sales.
e All surplus items will be advertised publicly to ensure transparency and equitable access, including:
o Posting on NCRD’s official website
o Sharing via NCRD’s social media platforms
o Publishing a public notice in the Headlight Herald
e All public notices and online announcements will direct interested parties to Public Surplus for item
details and participation in the sale process.
« Items not sold through Public Surplus may be responsibly disposed of in accordance with applicable

local and state regulations.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that NCRD staff are authorized to execute the listing, advertising, and
documentation of the disposal of the above items, and to report the results of this surplus process to the Board

as heeded.

ADOPTED this ___ day of , 2025, by the Board of Directors of the North County Recreation District.

Chair, Board of Directors Secretary, Board of Directors

POBox207 | 361559%St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



Public Notice {Newspaper Format)
North County Recreation District - Notice of Surplus Property Sale

The North County Recreation District (NCRD) hereby provides public notice that it has declared the
following equipment as surplus and will make these items available for public sale:

e Freemotion f7.8 Elliptical Machine
e Water Rower Machine
e Precor Elliptical Machine

All items will be sold through Public Surplus, an online government auction platform, available at:
www.publicsurplus.com

Interested parties can view, bid, and purchase these surplus items by visiting the Public Surplus
website and searching for “North County Recreation District” under the agency list.

For more information, please contact NCRD Administration at marcusr@ncrdnehalem.org or
(971) 308-0311.

Website/Social Media Version
Surplus Equipment Sale - NCRD is Clearing Space!

We’re making room for updated equipment at North County Recreation District—and that means
some of our older or unused items are now available to the public!

Surplus Items Include:
e Freemotion f7.8 Elliptical (out of order)
e Water Rower Machine
e Precor Elliptical Machine

Allitems are being sold via Public Surplus, our official online auction partner.

Browse and bid here: www:publicsurplus.com
(Search for “North County Recreation District” under Agencies)

Questions? Contact NCRD Administration at marcusr@ncrdnehalem.org or (971) 308-0311.

Let me know if you'd like these notices customized further with your contact info or gra phics for
social media—happy to help prepare a Canva version if needed!

c9)



North County
Recreation District

Proposal to Establish a Grand Opening Committee
North County Recreation District (NCRD) - New Pool Facility

Purpose

The Grand Opening of the new NCRD pool facility marks a historic milestone for our community. To
ensure the event is successful, well-organized, and representative of our values, staff recommends the
formation of a Grand Opening Committee. This committee will guide planning efforts, coordinate with
staff and volunteers, and ensure recognition of donors, partners, and community members who made
this project possible.

Committee Description

The Grand Opening Committee will serve as a temporary working group tasked with planning and
executing the celebration event for the new pool. The committee will coordinate logistics, marketing, and
hospitality to deliver a professional and memorable event. Members will collaborate closely with NCRD
staff, the Board of Directors, and community partners to ensure that the event reflects NCRD’s mission

and commitment to the community.

Proposed Responsibilities
1. Chair
o Provide_ overall leadership and direction
o Facilitate committee meetings
o Ensure alignment with district goals and board expectations
2. Event Logistics
o Oversee event setup, staging, and equipment needs
o Coordinate with facility staff and contractors
o Develop detailed event-day run-of-show
3. Community Engagement & Marketing
o Manage public outreach, press releases, and social media promotion

o Work with staff to ensure consistent messaging

o Invite dignitaries, community partners, and media @

POBox207 | 361559% St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273




North County
Recreation District

4. Donor Recognition & Sponsorship
o Coordinate unveiling of donor recognition wall and signage
o Ensure donor and partner acknowledgements during the event
o Manage sponsor involvement
5. Program & Activities
o Develop ribbon-cutting ceremony and pool demonstrations
o Organize entertainment and children’s activities
o Arrange guided tours of the new facility
6. Hospitality & Volunteer
o Organize refreshments and reception setup
o Coordinate volunteers to assist with guest services
o Ensure-accessibility accommodations
7. Finance & Budget Oversight
o Track event expenses against approved budget

o Coordinate reimbursements and vendor payments

Meeting Schedule
« Weekly meetings leading up to the event
o Progress updates provided to the NCRD Board of Directors

e Final walkthrough of event schedule and site prior to opening

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the formation of the Grand Opening Committee
and appoint members to fill the above roles. The committee will dissolve upon successful completion of

the grand opening event.
@

POBox207 | 361559™ St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



